7,
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wife the rest of the esty Wit: Ro&::fﬁf:£3.<//i; 9br,
1677. Book 2, p. 153. '

WHITEHEAD, Robert: Est,- By Elizabeth Whitehead, admrx, John
Threeweet, Solomon Wynne, Jollum Sturdivant. 21 April,
1731. Book 8, p. 93.

WIGGINS, Sarah: Makes Gifts as follows: to eldest son, John
Bayley, to dau., Eliza. Cooper, to Daughter, Mary Wiggin,
to son, William Wiggin. 16 May, 1711. Wit: Richard Hide,
Jno. Phillips. Book 6, p. 56,

WIGGINS, Thomas: Leg.- To son, Richard Wiggin, a piece of
Land at Johnchehocan Swamp where he dwelleth, 140 acres,
part of Land I bought of Mr. John Simmons, To son, John
Wiggin, a Plantation at Johnchehocan, which I lately made
there and all the remaining part I hold there, and part
bought of Mr, John Simmons. To son, Thomas Wiggin, 100
acres of land at Johnchehocan..to a road that comes from
Jno. Parsons, also Plantation bought from John Simmons,

To my son, William, after my wife's death, Sarah Wiggins,
three=fourths of the Plantation where 1 dwell; the other
one-fourth to my son, John Wiggins., To daughter, Eliza,
Cooper, two ewes, Daughter, Mary Wiggins, one cow, when
sixteen years old. To daughter, Sarah, a cow when sixteen
or married, Sons, William and John each a mare at 18 years
old., Made: 231 Jan., 1710/11. Prob,: 25 Feb,, 1710,

wit: Will, Cocke, Thos. Cocke, Book 6, p. 4l.

WILKASON, John: Verbal Will, All of his estate to his wife,
Elizabeth for her life, then to his son, Mathew Wilkason.
7 May, 1700, Hump. Folpe, Richard Green, Thos. Adkins.
Book 5, p. 203,

WILKINSON, John: Est,- By Eliza., Wilkinson, admrx. 2 July,
1700, Richard Bullock, Adam Heath, Book 5, p. 210,

WILLIAMS, Charles: Leg.-= ughter, Elizabeth Champion 5 lbs,
Daughter, Mary Seward, one amp-
i etc, Son=in- amin Champion, wearing
n n

r r
Lawnes Creek Parish, if anddaughter, Eliza-
beth Champion. All estate here or in England, ual=-
ly divided hetween my wife, Elizabeth and child in esse.
Wife made Exerx. Hade: 14 Dec., 1720, Prob.: ug.,
1721, Wit: Wm., Gray, James Vaughan, Bartlett Moreland.
Book 7, p. 357 ¢ )

5] .
law, Be

WILLIAMS, David: Leg.- Bequest to Wm. Harris, orphan of one
gun and two pewter dishes., To wife, Martha Williams, my
whole estate to be divided between her and her children.
Child in esse to have equal portion with my wife and daugh-
ter. 28 Dec., 1675. Prob.: 28 March, 1676. Wit: James
Murray, Jno. Twyford, Book 2, p. 106,

WILLIAMS, George: Est.- 25 May, 1703. Nath, Harrison, Samuel
Thompson. Book 5, p. 282,

WILLIAMS, Jones: Leg.- To brother, Edmund Hubbard, one negro.
To my kinsman, John Tyler, one negro. To my brother, Ed-
mund Hubbard my Plantation at Meherrin and an account due
me from Abraham Saul. A horse had of John Stevens to my
kinswoman, Ann Hunt, and all jewels, gold, silver, goods
and chattels. Makes "My kinsman, George Hunt®™ Exer. Wit:

142

Edward Harper,.Mathew Edloe, John Macon, Made: 8 Nov.,
1717, Prob.: 21 May, 1718. Book 7, p. 121,

WILLIAMS, Lewis: Est.- Mrs, Elizabeth Merriweather has made
suit to the Court that Commissioners be appointed in right
of the orphans of the deceased, Mr. Robert Caufield and
Mr. Arthur Allen appointed. Mrs. Eliza, Meriweather to
qualify. 16 June, 1679. Book 2, p. 216.

WILLIAMS, Roger: Leg.- To son, Roger, all my Land he now lives
on, and he pay his brother, George Williams, 500 lbs. of
tobacco., If no issue to surviving brothers, Wife, Mary
Williams, to have the use of my Plantation, housing and
land where I live, for her life, then to my son Samuell,
if no heirs, to my son, George., After my debts are paid
the remainder of my estate to be divided between my wife
and children, Wife and son, Roger, Exers, Wit: Nich,
Smith, Benj. Foreman, Rand. Revell., Made: 24 Oct., 1706,
Prob,: 5 March, 1708, Book 5, p. 411,

WILLIAMS, Roger: Leg,- Gives wife use of all Lands and Plan-
tation for her life; at her death to my son, Thomas and one
negro. If no heir, negro to my three daughters, Eliza,
Bage, Mary Lancaster, wife of Law, Lancaster and Jane Wil-
liams, To daughter, Elizabeth Bage one negro for her life,
then to granddaughter, Eliza. Lucy Bage., To daughter,

Mary Lancaster, wife of Lawrence Lancaster, one negroj {f
no heirs to three children, Thomas Williams, Eliza,. Bage,
and Jane Williams. Daughter, Jane Williams one cow. Son,
Thomas, a negro, Wife, Exerx. Made: 7 Aug., 1744,
Prob,: 20 March, 1744, Wit: Wm, Jordan, John Sharpe,
Robt, Gray. Will presented by Katherine Williams, Book
9, p. 497,

’

WILLIAMS, William: Leg.- To son, Lewis Williams, 40 acres ad-
joining his own land up Wet Slash to Green Swamp. To
daughter, Hester, my Plantation where I live with one-half
the remaining part of land and one negro., Son, William, to
have the use of the other part of the land for seven years
then to my daughter, Lidia, Gives daughter, Lidia, into
the care of Wm, Newsum's wife until of age, or married and
teach her to read the Catechism. To daughters, Anne,
Katherine, Mary, Hannah, Unity, and Faith, each five shil-
lings. Sons John and William five shillings each, Mentions
five children, Lewis, Wm., Eliza, Lidla, and Hester.
Friend, Wm, Edwards and son, Lewis Williams, Exers, Made:
17 Nov., 1740. Prob.: 16 April, 1741. Wit: Wm. Edwards,
John Johnson, Book 9, p. 294,

WILLIAMSON, Guthbert: Est,- Hallum Sturdivant, Elizabeth Stur-
divant, 16 June, 1736. John Rottenbury, Susannah Rotten-
bury. Book 8, p. 636,

WILLIAMSON, John: Leg.- To Elizabeth Sturdivant, wife of
Hollum Sturdivant, some ells of ozenburg. To daughter,
Susannah Rottenbury, wife of John Rottenbury, 241 acres of
land on the south side of Nottoway River where they now
live and 100 ells of brown ozenburg. To daughter, Edith
Williamson, one negro, bed, horse and 15 pounds, Daughter,
Hannah Fox, wife of Richard Fox an account at the store of
Thos, Eldridge, four negroes, and my Troopers Arms. To my
son, Cuthbert Williamson (a large stain makes this bequest
{llegible). Brother Cuthbert Williamson, and friend Robert
Green supervisors of my will until son, Cuthbert is of age
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negro etc, To daughter, Rebecca,
Elizabeth, the remainder of the estate. Son, James and
; Nathaniel Wyche. Made: 24 Feb,, 1748, Prob.: 20 June,
Er 1749, Wit: James Terrell, William Pettway. Book 9,
p. 611. ———

., WYCHE, James: Est,- 15 May, 1750, Jos, Thorpe, Mary Tiller,
V4 Sam, Alsobrooke, Book 9, p. 644,

WYCHE, William: Leg.- To son, Cyrill, all my Land and three
slaves. Wife, Judith, to have the labor of the three
negroes until Cyrill is 21 years old. Rest of estate to
wife, Judith, and "all my children", after debts and fun-
eral expenses are paid. Made: 21 Feb., 1719-20, 15
Feb,, 1720, Wit: Richard Parker, Henry Bedingfield,
Richard Parker, Jr. Book 7, p. 299,

WYCHE, William: Est.- Richard Parker, Jr,, surviving husband
of Judith Parker, Exer. 16 Feb., 1731, Wit: Jos., Wither-
ington, Jos. Gee. Book 8, p. 164,

WYNN, Thomas: Leg.- To my son, Thomas Wynn, land on the north
side of Surry County, 200 acres, and horse and gun. To
my wife a gold ring, one negro for her life, horse, etc.
To granddaughter, Leweresy Wynn, one cow. To granddaugh-
ter, Martha Wynn, one cow., Wife, Agnes, BSon, Robert
Wynn. The rest of my estate to be equally divided amongst
"my children"., Makes son, Robert, Exer. Presented by
Richard Bland, admr. Wit: John Roberts, John Hicks, Wm.
Moor. 18 Feb., 1716, Prob.: _ , 1718. Book 7,

p. 117,

WYNNE, Robert: Est,- By John Brown. Sworn to by Robert Wynne.
21 June, 1727. Wm, Smith, Thos, Willson, Charles Kimbell,
Book 7, p. .

THERINGTON, Katherine: Leg,- To my grandson, William Foster;
but if he die, or not return from sea, then to Joseph
Witherington, my kinsman. Tg William Gray, a debt, To

\ Mary, wife of William Gray. Friend, Samuel Thompson, Exer.
Made: 5 Jan., 1713714, Prob.: 17 , 1713, Wit
Samuel Cooke, Robert Payne, Book 6, p. 179,

YOUNG, John: Leg.- Estate to his wife, Tabitha Young. 4 Sept,,
1714, Agnis Farmer, Mary Ellis, Clement Lanier. Book 6,
p. 238,

146

INDEX

(?), Abraham 29
(?), Beck 29

(?), Dina 29

(?), Frank 29, 46
(?), Isaac 29
(?), Jack 29, 93, 94
(?), Jacob 29
(?), Jamey 29
(?), Jane 20

(?), Joe 29

(?), John 60

(?), Judy 29

“(?), Nanny 29

(?), Robbin 94
(?), Tom 5, 20, 29
(?), will 29
Adams, Ann 1

Allen (cont.)

Arthur 28, 29, 35, 37, 41,
93, 97, 99, 114, 132, 143

Arthur (Maj.) 129

Eliza 28

Elizabeth 3, 5, 27

James 2, 3, 29, 35

Jno. 86, 126

John 2, 3, 4, 27, 35, 92,
93, 123, 133

John (Capt.) 100

John (Col.) 52

John (Coll,) 5

Joseph 2, 3, 4, 97

Katherine 2, 3, 28

Mary 3, 4, 129

Sarah 4

Eliza 1 Wm, 4, 5, 96, 134

Mary 1, 32 Allistin, Thos. 87

Patrick 5, 24, 25 Allstin, John 58

Peter 32 Mary 52, 98

Sarah 1 Thomas 58, 98, 101, 102,

Susannah 1 139

Thomas 1 Thos. 113, 140

Thos, 1 Allston, Thomas 56

William 1 Allvirs, Thomas 30

Wm, 1 Alsbrook, Samuell 14
Addams, Peter 82 Alsobrook, John 43
Adkins, Eliza 2 Sam. 55

Jane 2 Thos. B85

Joan 2, 65 Alsobrooke, Joan 75

Joane 1 Sam, 14

Mary 2 Samuel 75, 129, 130

Rachel 2 Thomas 14

Richard 2 Alstin, Thomas 3

Thos. 65, 142 Thos. 3

William 2 Amos, Mary 5

Adrews, John 18
Alderson, Elizabeth 2 -
Jillian 2
Wm, 82
Alesbrook, Samuell 120
Alexander, Samuel 38
Allen, (?) 5
Ann 3, 4
Ar. 10, 93, 126, 127
Arthur 3, 4, 10, 12, 15,

147

Amry, Charles 58

Edward 99
Jno. 82
Ruth 5
Thos. 99

Anderson, Eliza, §

Ingumbred 5

James 21, 22, 37, 82, 91
Mary 5, 83

Thomas 26




sny .

~ | ER
[f}i’“(ﬁ T repn 16573, D!.Hog, @;%_5& Alch O grme =7 g
WE‘»‘M&(’ 75 5 ' -ﬁ-’ﬁ%m T fpcdds_

u.wtrp,, (3

P /17/70@ 3 Sed-ASS. sHAtS Gkny Lyefles 4 THs. GRNY, bill
't_tt‘*@&»wh.w . countye & .gg,‘;ywj doe Ceor 3 I considovstec
na-&(/y7 /vjurf?“Té'ﬁg ) P Eent To lgpsk Thos .
L GRrY —__ * (PtTar
f"?f?ﬂc.s G}pL} F G. /L,f Jap, 6#M§£ 53”15503103-

(/f’/i’ 967) MAS, DB R ITHVE CORKER, Aoed 5%\ ez €5 O These about s ben ¢
e“‘z”""l“& in Sv{’-"%) Coon:\ryﬁ CWVJT' 9. /‘127 /{757 g2.th —_—L\a?}' T)’Ibm-?j (zf’es gavs
To Thomas Gray Senies his sonne Themas GRry ¢ Devghtes Jone Gra
) vetye Aeves o€ Lanb Lpun GRAYES (Creck +hewch. This Aeﬁa‘f‘ 76@{42
“lhe 24, Safes 55‘7 hee hz4d done.{-@@ur'me(s{% net ngne&ﬁ.z[q(a o
Dorithye Coerek . ) @ﬂw&
aé OHM HA € fearcs ghthebls sw e Swelts & I may (65T —deph pmsar i)
DVE'C-B?/ 514’” t 7A0S. éo@]’—)’s‘?n ior 4 Sisfe,. 7o %ﬂfﬂﬁ IS T 8
53@4*‘]5:2« or ‘t‘buded#fﬁuf’)‘ﬁmw*“rbm w T o 44, do10ns >
+—d‘ Moy G Ga‘oﬁ e (TR p8 GRAy K. Gaui Uis byt
\]/ KE MIZELL o el 45" sptdts  su vex leg chwots #wm—bﬁu . oo
Lok ts Tho.bery <& decd i did wﬂm 2D Gy Fhis L "%

HiokGotes fs oo, 50 . Wrtiny rprne Thersuso +-Tdas, Yord-
QMW W,ﬂ;,&w‘_ﬁ% /O M )4,57
J.S%)«n Flo #W#M Wm w! Th éu-;-—«) Sh —
Brod — ar /Dt 1651,
w%"%@@ Thewe Gn ,1 PP
~ Sion Kose, o T /ww%w/ﬁqu rernse] - 2 dyen (660

/&0 G R /lsﬂde_ (7—-)

’L_W\-



Gorse
Bobis 19 L?/

155 A3 . : o/ s
UH_D% l:rﬂv-: 1675~ :g'iw— vag, (ahrh a{gew‘-{), T
(726 | M ., Coreran -#Jﬂ,uﬁaw _ &, )

Bk, Eebisl_ e of Concttis] S Serny.
o L WOM — ﬁ,a.nljw ‘Sa/uw\,. /7/0’/3/ }745’—/9’) })720-24 .

%L(r:;’; | et 6&"5’" é" N

Al /\,\\"\
N \l\
B |
. .



=~

~.|
|

— —— N A SR




Publishers of The

Form A1, tanuiy Group Sheet by The Everor® Publishers,
UT 84311/

P.C. Box 36f. Logan, .
Gravalognal Melper, Send for a free catalogue with Jist and

tal) descripiions Af many penealogical aids .

J

Husband’s Full. Name

)

Husband’s Full Name 7 uivir S

Family Group Sheet

GRAY

Chart No.475F

GRI

Rusoeng's
Data

Day Moenth  Year

City, Town or Place

County or Province, #1c.

State or Country

Add. Info. on Busban

Rirth

/595

Chrind

Marr.

Death

%11

Burial

SwrRY o VA,

Places of Residence

Qeevpalian

Church Affiliation

Military Rec.

Oiher wivez, if any. Ho. (132 slc.
Make sepa-ale sheet lor anch mare.

His Father

Maother's Maiden Name

Wife’s Full Maiden Name

e G RET L

Fioot .

ot Day Monlh  Year

Gity, Town or Place

County or Province, etc.

State or Country

Add. Intfo. on Wife

Birth

Car'nd

Death

Burial

Places of Residence

Occupation

Church Atfiliation

Military Rec.

Gther husbangs, it any. No {1 (2} eic

Make 857 et dor cann man
Her_ Father Mather's Maiden Name
Sex | e e e [ S iaocers Day Month  Year City, Tpwn or Place County or Province, etc. State or Country | Adg. Inio on Childre
1 % Eirth /4%
CAPT. Lol Marr. B
Full Name of Spouse Death /W SURRY
W Burial I
2 5 Birth fE30
- N ogprs FR AACS Marr,
Fuil Narme of Spousa Elh )é?f é,;_)/&@y
7 AQJ/ '7 Buriat
a3 ] : Birth .
:;)O }‘([J L;. Marr, é b
T ﬁ Name of Spouse Dealh B
-:J,’D}ijf\) ;-7’ {_ﬂ Burial
4 Blrth
'Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death T
_Buria!
5 Birth
Marr. -
Full Name of Spouse Death |
Burial
6 Birth
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death N
- Burial
7 Birth
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death
Burial
8 Birth
Marr.
Fuil Mame of Spouse Death
Burial
Compiler Notes:
Address -
City, State, Zip

Jale




: Family Group Sheet

Husband’s Full Name ~up7. WILLIAM QRAv Chart No. G2 2.

pusbands | pay  Month  vear City. Jown or Place County ar Prdvince, eic. State or Country Add. Info. on Husban
o h Birth Jaal
Chr'nd
Marr.
.
Death T |supRry <o
Burial
Piaces of Residence
Qccupation Chureh Atfitiation Military Rec.
Nas vamesise smn 11 eaen .
His Father Mother's Maiden Name
Wife's Full Maiden Name
J._%E 2 v Day Monlh  Year City, Town or Place County or Province, etc. State or Country Add. info, on Wife
£5%  lainn
EE f Chr'nd
2 3- .‘% i Death
""::E 2 :E Burial
:.: 3 ig‘ Ptaces of Residence
'::":g E Qccupation Chureh Afiiliation Miiilary Rec.
i g3 £ 1 Other huscanas.of any. No (1) @) alc.
~ 3 5‘. E Mahe sopaiatl SRaAED 0 EaCh AT
i ;:T":. { Her Father Mother's Maiden Name
£ x ‘g‘ ,_ Sex | e e Jﬁ"‘” Day Month Year City, Town or Place Counly or Province, elc. State or Gountry | Add. Info an Ghildrel
P Z H E 1 Birth
2o LY DA Marr
Fuli Name of Spouse Death
Sam S SR Burial
2 Birth
_ﬁ Marr.
Fult Name of Spouse Death T
| Bunal
3 Birlh
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death
Burial
4 Birth
Marr. -
Full Name of Spouse Death
Burial
5 Birth
Marr.
T Full Mame of Spouse Death
Burial -
@ 6 Birth
E Marr.
g Full Name ot Spouse Death
= Burial
LI:?_ 7 Birth
L Marr.
E Fuil Name of Spouse Death
-g Burial
g 8 Birth
T Marr.
Fuil Name of Spouse Death -
ﬁ Burial
Compiler Noles:
Address
City. State, Zip
Dale




Publishers of The

weoi Heiper, Send for a free catalogue with list and

H
]
:
=
2
H
B .
g_ 83
~ 83
~ ol
£9E2
R Tl
£
g
Ho kL
& .ok
ESf:
G &R
2=k
Eu X o
FEIZ
T2E:
% i
g L -
Eci=
&y El
[

)

) Husband’s Full Name

Husband’s Full Name CACT, FrAUCIS (G R&Y

Family Group Sheet

Chart No. Gcﬁ 3

dusbirds | gy Maonth  Year City, Town or Place County or Province. etc.

State or Country

Add. Info. on Husban

' 1635

Birth

Chr'nd

Marr.

Death

/619

Buriat

Places of Residence

Qccupation Church Affiliation Military Rec
Eioes seperate smuct tor sncr mar
His Faiher Mother's Maiden Name
Wife's Full Maiden Name 47 #72/
‘3‘,'::" Day Month Year City, Town or Place County or Province, eic. State or Country Add. info. on Wite
Birth
Chrnd
Death
Burial
Flaces of Residence
Cccupation Church Atfitiation Mililary Rec.
SR aemans sha o et e
Her Father Mother's Maiden Name
S e o by l Covarans Day Month Year City, Town of Place County or Province, etc. State or Country | Add. Info on Childrel
1 Birth
A‘:‘,’L} Z"A'ﬁﬁ-n‘( Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death
TAES AICHOLED A foui
2 Birth
Marr,
" Full Name of Spouse Death -
Burial
3 Birth
Marr.
Full Name ol Spouse Death
Burial
4 Birth
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death o
Burial -
5 Birth
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death - - -
Burial
6 Birth
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death -
Bunal
7 Birth
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death
Burial
8 Birth | >
Marr.
Full Name of Spouse Death T
Burial
Compiler Noles:
—Address
City. State, Zip
Daie




066

SOUTHSIDE

VIRGINIA FAMILIES
Volume II (\7’?’:5 ‘

by

John Bennett Boddie

PaciFic CoAST PUBLISHERS
Repwoon CiTy, CALIFORNIA
1956

PUBLIC LIBRARY.
BI=MINGHAM, ALAI




o8

William Collier, son of his sister Elizabeth; and brother John
Philiips. William Phillips, second husband of Faith Flood, was
probably the son of William Phillips who married Mary, daughter
of Matthew Swan of Surry Co., and died in 1721 in Surry, his will,
dated Feb, 14, 1720/21, and probated April 19, 1721, mentioning
his sons John, William, Swan and Matthew, and his daughters
Anne, Mary and Elizabeth, and his wife Mary,

\--Anne (Rose) Fleod, widow of Captain Thomas Flood, Jr., died
in 1728. Her will was dated Nov. 25, 1728, proved March 19,
1728/29. Daughter Faith Phillips; grandaughter Elizabeth Collier;
grandaughter Elizabeth Watkins, "a gift made me by Mrs. Pot-
ter"; grandaughter Jean Ricks; grandson Thomas Reeks; grand-
daughter Mary Phillips. Executors, my daughter Elizabeth Col-
lier and her husband, Thomas Collier. Witnesses: John Car-
gill, Benjamin Chapman Donaldson, Richard Rose. (Surry Book
1715-30, p. 915).

Harry Flood (who may have been a son of Capt. Thomas Flood,
Jr.,) married Mrs. Joanna {Joyce) Nicholson, widow of Robert
Nicholson, III, (d. 1718). He was married twice and had a daugh-
ter by his first wife who married Robert Nicholson, san of his
second wife, Harry Flood made his will Dec. 18, 17389, proved
Oct. 15, 1740, as follows: ... to daughter Ann Flood in England,
if living; daughter Elizabeih Nicholson and her six children;
Henry, Robert, Mary, George, James and Anne Nicholson. Ex-
ecutor; Son-in-law Robert Nicholson, under direction of Col.
Allen. Witnesses Thomas Hamlin, L. Delong Elizabeth Rook-
ings. (Surry Book 1738-54, p. 228)

His wife Johanna (Joyce) Flood made her will Oct, 21, 1720,
same probated May 18, 1743, as follows: I give to John Nichol-
son the Great Bible that was his father's which is properly mine;
son Robert Nicholson; daughters Joice and Anne Nicholson, under
age {in 1720), daughter Elizabeth. Capt. Henry Harrison to have
daughters Joice and Elizabeth and thelr estate until they are of
age; Capt. Thos, Cocke, son of Mr, Walter Cocke to have Anne
until she is of age; Capt. Thos Cocke to be Executor. Withesses:
Nicheolas Cocke, Mary Dawson, Mary Allstin. (Surry Book 1738-
54, p. 433). '
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P?Ammasl Gray (1583-1658), of James City and Surry Counties,
Virginia, arrived as a boy of 15 in 1608. He survived the "year
of starving", the Indian massacres of 1622 and 1642, and all the
other trials and tribulations of the earliest English settlers of
what is now the United States. His first marriage was apparently
in Virginia in 1618, In the "Musters of the Inhabitants in Vir-
ginia 1624/5" (Hotten, p. 228) there were listed: "Thomas Graye, d
Margrett his wife, Jone their daughter aged 6 yeres, Willlam
their sonn aged 3 yeres", '

., In 1635 Thomas Gray patented 550 acres in James City County

On 3. side of the maine river over against James Citty, adj. on
the E. to the plantation now in his possession & to land of Capt,
Perry, running along by Rolfes Cr. & S. into the woods upon the
Cross Cr., 100 acres due as an Ancient Planter at or before the
time of Sir Thomas Dale, 50 acres for the personal adventure of
Anis Gray his first wife, 50 acres for the personal adventure of
Rebecca Gray his now wife, and 350 acres for trans. of his. two
sons, Wm, Gray & Tho, Gray, and 5 servants: Jon. Bishopp,
Robt. Browne, Robt, Welshe, Luke Misle, Jon. Banckes".
(Virginia Land Office Book 1, p. 283.) This patent is identical
with one issued - apparently a reissue - May 26, 1638, except
that, as shown in "Cavaliers and Pioneers", p. 105, the name
of his first wife was stated as "Avis"; this was probably not
an actual change but a slight difference in the appearance of the
written word. Others have interpreted the word as "Annis".
In 1638 Thomas Gray patented 400 acres in James City County,
upon the head of Gray's Creek, for the transportation of 8 per-
sons: Richard Deane, Francis Fiveash, Allen Sadome, William
Short, John Hancoke, and 3 negroes. In 1642 Thomas Gray pat-
ented 100 acres in James City County on the east side of Gray's
Creek, adjoining his own land, for the transportation of two
persons: George Graves and Willlam Browne, On March 14,
1652, Thomas Gray patented 800 acres in Surry County, on south
side of James River at the head of Smiths Fort Creek, adj. land
of John Kemp; 400 acres thereof were granted sd. Gray July 30,
1639, and 400 acres were purchased by sd, Gray of Samuel. Ab-
bott. (Land Office Book 3, p. 158). On March 7, 1653, Thomas
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Gray, Senr,, aged 60 years or thereabouls, deposed that Daniel
Hutton (In the Valentine Papers, p. 556, this name is printed as
"Daniel Shelton") in the time of his sickness not long before his
departure did bequeath his whole estate to Rebecka his wife ver-
bally. (Surry County Deed Book 1, p. 41).

Thomas 1 Gray married twice. The name of his second wife
was Rebecca. The name of his first wife, who was probably the
mother of his five children, was listed in the "Muster" of 1624/5
as "Mergaret" but his may have been an error on the part of the
recorder as in land patents by her husband her name appears 10
have been "Avis" or "Anis" or possibly "Annis",

Thomas Gray had five children, in the following order:

I. Jane Gray (1619-18 ), m. John Hux (1613-18 ).
II. William Gray (1622-1714), m. ca, 16:1/ . Mary .
4 children.
III. Thomas Gray (ca. 1625-1678) d. s.p.
IV. John Gray {ca. 1627-1683) m. Mary . 1 daughter.
V. Francis Gray {ca. 1630-1579), (See later.)

William?2 Gray (1622-1714} lived in Surry County, Va, In
1677 Willlam Gray and John Gray, planters of Surry County,
being joint heirs of Thomas Gray, sold Col. Thomas Swann
100 acres lying between Col Swann's and the mouth of & creek
formerly called Smiths Fort Creek but now called Gray's Creek.
Witnesses: Thos. Busby, Robt. Penny. {(Surry County Deed
Book 12, p, 145). In 1860 William Gray patented 680 acres
in Surry County adjoining Mr. Richard Briggs, Mr, William
Edwards, and Mr. Robert Ruffin, being part of 800 acres granted
in 1668 to Willlam Harris of Surry County and by him sold in 1679
to the said William Gray, (Virginia Land Office Book 7, p. 27).
In 1679 William Gray sold to Robert Kae of Isle of Wight County
and Nicholas Wilson of Surry County a 99-year lease, of a water

- mill, made to sd. Gray by Robert Parke and Mary his wife,

{Surry County Deed Book 12, p. 252). In 1688 William Gray sold
to Mr. Chas White 136 acres which had been patented in 1654 by
Eliza Hutton and which had descended to the sd. William Gray as
next cousin and heir. (D.B, 3, p. 3). In 1689 William Gray
sold to Robt, Caufield 680 acres, of which 490 acres had been
purchased of Wm. Harris, son of Thomas Harris, decd, and

the remainder patented by the sd. William Gray in 1680, Wit-
nesses: Arthur Allen, Wm. Smith. (D.B., 3,p. ). William
Gray in his will dated February 8, 1710, recorded October 20,

his wife and his son Thomas Gray. Witnesses were Wm. Fog~"
ter and David Andrews. (D.B. 5 p. 212).

William Gray married, 164 , Mary and had four
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children: (1} Lydia Gray. She was probably the Lydia who

m, lst. Samuel Judkins (d. 1672), and m. 2nd. Capt. Thomas
LPitman, (2) Gilbert Gray (ca. 164 =-ca., 1710} d.s.p. (3}

John Gray {ca. 1650-1708) d.s.p. He left legacies to "my sis-
ter Lidia, my brothers Thomas and Gilbert, and my father",

His father Willlam Gray was executor. (4) Thomas Gray {ca.
1652~-ca, 1717), married and left one son, Thomas Gray,
who was afl orphan in 1717 and chose William Foster as a guard-
ian, ' :

Thomas? Gray (ca. 1625-1676), of Surry County, Va., ap-
parently never married. In his will dated April 16, 1676, and
proved May 2, 1676, he gave to his brother Francis Gray 3
draughts of hogs, to the wife of Francis Gray his linen cloths,
to his brothers John and William Gray his plantation with all
the land belonging therewith, and to his three brothers, Francis,
John, and William Gray the remainder of his estate to be equal-
ly divided. Witnesses were Nathl. Knight and Jno. Ironmonger.
On May 2, 1676, his will was proved by Mr. Nathl, 'Knight and
John Jennings, and Francis Gray qualified ag administrator, with
Thos, Sorsby and George Foster as his securities,

" John? G—Fay {ca. 1627-1683) lived in Surry County, Va.
Nov. 2, 1675, John Gray, Senr., was ordered to pay to Wm,
Tooke 500 1bs, tobacco according to will of Ridley, decd, 1671,
for the services of John Gray, Jr., one year more., (Surry
County Order Book 1671-90, p. 104}). On Nov. 4, 1678, John
Gray confessed judgment to Mr. Robert Ruffin for 400 lbs. of
tobacco, (O.B, 1671-80, p. 241), John Gray in his will dated
May 16, 1683, proved July 3, 1683, gave one-third of his
estate to his wife, and the remainder {(except for his housing
and land) to his daughter with reversion, should she die before
coming of age or marrying, to the children of his brother Wil-
liam Gray. His housing and land he gave to his "cousin' John
Gray, son of Willlam Gray. He gave a cow to his "cousin"
William Gray, son of Francis Gray. He made his wife executrix,
and desired his brother Williamm Gray and his "cousin® William
Gray to see that his will was performed, Witnesses were John
Foster and Thomas Bage. (D.B, 12, p. 330), On July 3, 1683,
Mary Gray was granted probate on the will of John Gray decd.
John Moreing, Mr. Geo. Foster, and Mr, Thos. Crews were
appointed appraisers of the estate. (O, B. 1871-50, p. 408
The widow, Mrs. Mary Gray, married 2nd. 1683, Robert Nichol-
son.

\  Capt. Francis® Gray (ca. 1630 (?)-1679), of Surry County,
Virginia, was the youngest son of the immigrant Thomas Gray
{1593-1658}). On Nov, 3, 1658, Francis Gray for a consideration
assigned hig right in certain land patents to his brother, Thomas
Gray. Witnesses were Jno. Gittings and Sam. Swaine. (Surry

On
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~A~ Capt. Francis Fray married, 165 , Mary
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County Deed Book, 1, p. 175). In 1662 William Browne, William
Simmons, Nathl. Knight, Henry Francis, Francis Gray, etc.

on a special jury panel. (D.B. 1, p. 185). In 1662 Francig
Gray bought a heifer of Henry Briggs. (.D.B. 1, p. 210). On
Jan. 26, 1662/3, Francis Gray deeded to John Tatum 100 acres
in Surry County of Chippoakes Creek adj. sd. Tatum's land
lately purchased of John Rawlings. Witnesses: Elias Osborne,
Selby Sparrow. (D.B. 1, p. 213). On Sept. 4, 1666, Francis
Gray acknowledged his deed to his brother Thomas Gray of the
plantation on which Mr. Hely lived and which his said brother
Thomas Gray had since let to Mr. Dickerson. (D.B. 1, p. 275).
In 1668 Thomas Gray and Francis Gray in the list of tithables
taken by Mr. George Jordan. In 1673 Francis Gray confessed
judgement to Harry Francis for 400 lbs. tobacco & caske with
costs. (0.B. 1671-90, p. 22). In 1674 Francis Gray, defend-
ant, vs. Col. Thomas Swann; judgment for plaintiff 2769 lbs.
tobacco. (0. B. 1671-90, p. 72). In 1675 Francis Gray and
Mary Gray sold to Thomas Crews a parcel of land in Surry
County bounded by lands of Thomas Gray, George Foster, and
Col. Thomas Swann, near the mouth of Gray's Creek. Wit-
nesses: Wm. Thompson, Fra, Sumner. (O.B. 1671-90, p.69).
On May 2, 1676, Francis Gray qualified as administrator of

the estate of his brother Thomas Gray decd., with Thos. Sorsby
and George Foster as his securities. (O.B. 1671-90, p. 126).
In 1677 Francis Gray in the list of tithables of Surry County.
Capt. Francis Gray apparently made no will. He died in 1679
and his widow, Mary Gray, qualified as administratrix; she
gave bond for 40, 000 lbs. of legal tobacco, with Roger Potter and
George Foster as her securities. Witnesses: Thos. Jordan, Wm,
Edwards. Recorded June 25, 1679. (D. B. 1, p. 1).

and had one
son, Capt. William Gray who died in 1719, and three daughters.
The latter have not been positively identified but they appear on
the basis of available data to be those shown in the following list.

Children:
I. Margaret Gray, m. William Harris (d. 1720), m. 2nd..*
Thomas Taylor. N

Mary Gray, m. Edward Moreland (d. 1723) Ck ,.-‘ -

1I.

III. Elizabeth Gray, m. James Nicholson (d. 1723) o '

LIV, Capt. William Gray (1661-1719), (See below.)

(Mrs. Mary Gray m. 2nd. 1679, Owen Myrick).

Capt. Willam? Gray (1661-1719), of Surry County, Virginia,
was the only son of Capt. Francis Gray who died in 1679, He was
sheriff in 1700, a Justice of the Peace in 1710, and a member of
thepHouse of Burgesses in 1710, 1712, 1713, 1714, and 1715. He
was a member of the Court in 1716. (O.B. 1713-1718, p. 93).
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In 1685 William Gray, planter, of Southwark Parish, Surry Count
sold Samuel Plaw 400 acres, recently purchased of Sion Hill, ad;
Holly Bush Swamp near Mr. Warren's line. Witnesses: Robt.
Ruffin, Wm. Newsum. Mrs. Elizabeth Gray gave Robert Ruffin
power of attorney to relinquish her dower rights and this was
proved by William Williams. (Surry County Deed Book 2, p. 39)
On Nov. 7, 1690, Willam Gray, aged 28 years or thereabouts,
testified as to the processioning of the lines between the lands of
Capt. Robert Randall now in the possession of Thomas Swann and
the lands of Thomas Crews., (D.B. 3, p. 184). In the Virginia
Quit Rent Rolls for Surry County in 1704, Capt. William Gray
was listed with 1750 acres and William Gray, Junr. with 1050
acres. In 1710 Capt. William Gray sold to William Browne 4
acres in Surry County at Horse Bridge on the head of Grays Cree
3 acres thereof being on the south side and the remainder grantec
to the sd. Wm. Gray by the Court of Surry County for the purpos
of building a water mill. (D. B. 5, p. 14). Capt. William Gray,
in his will dated June 3, 1719, proved Nov. 18, 1719, left legacie
to his son William and to the latter's four sons (William, Robert,
Joseph and Thomas Gray); to his son Gilbert Gray, then unmarri
to his daughters Mary Gray, Priscilla Gray, and Faith Ruffin; an
to his grandchildren Wm. Andrews, Elizabeth Edwards, Wm. Gr
and Willm. Ruffin. His son Gilbert Gray was appointed executor
This will was witnessed by Nichl, Maget, Robt. Judkins, and San
Mapget,

Capt. William3Gray married, ca. 1682, Elizabeth and
had at least seven children. Order of birth not recorded but ap-
parently about as indicated below. Mot O A~

Children: —
I. Willam Gray (1682 -1736), m. 1702, Mrs. Mary (Craw-
ford) Seward (d. 1756). 7 children. (see later).
II. Elizabeth (?) Gray (ca. 1684(?)-17 ), m. William
Andrews, 2 (?) sons.
III. Lucy(?) Gray (ca. 1686 (?)-17 ), m. John (?) Edward:
IV. Faith Gray (ca. 1688(?) - ca. 1720), m. ca. 1707,
William Ruffin (ca. 1683-1739) g.v. '
V. Mary Gray (ca. 1690(?)-17 )

VI. Priscilla Gray (ca. 1692(?)-17 ), m. Capt. Thomas
Hill (1686-1737).
VII. Gilbert Gray (ca. 1696(?)-1764), m. ca. 1720(?),

Margaret (d. 1767). 7 children. (See later.)
William Gray (1682-1736) married 1702, Mrs. Mary (Craf-
ford) Seward, daughter of Robert Crafford and widow of John
Seward. On March 31, 1701/2, Mary Gray was executrix of
the estate of John Seward. Her account was audited by Robert
Crafford and Robert Jarrett. William Gray was Sheriff of Surry
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in 1718. His securities were William Browne and William Ed-
wards, He was also Burgess from Surry 1723-1726.

He made his will March 10, 1731, same probated June 16,
1736. His will is that of a wealthy man as he bequeaths large
tracts of land and many negroes. He gave sons, William, Rob-
ert, Joseph, Thomas, "land and plantations where they now
live". Also to Robert he gave "land left me by my father called
Babb's land and land purchased by me of my brother Gilbert,"
To Joseph he gave land "purchased of Charles Jones and wife, "
To son Edmund "land purchased of Robert Scott lying in Isle of
Wight County. "

Mrs. Mary Gray's will, dated 1756, showed daughter Lucy,
wife of Howell Briggs; granddaughter Eliza Rose; sons, William,
Edmund, James, Robert, Joseph and Thomas Gray; also son,
William Seward. Witnesses, Gray Briggs, Susannah Gray, and
William Thorp.

Children:
I. William, Jr, (1703-1744) (see later).
II. Robert, (1705-1777), Sheriff of Surry 1740, married
Miss Claiborne, moved to Edgecombe County, N. C,

III. Jogeph, (1707-1771), m. Sarah, dau. Col. John Sim-

mons (see later).

IV. Thomas

V. Edmund, under 21 in 1731, given land in Isle of Wight,

VI, James, {1715-1788), under 21 in 1731, m, Sarah

children: Josiah, m. Betsy West; James; Sarah, m,
Richard Powell Davis; Ann; Elizabeth; Susannah,
Nathaniel.

VII, Lucy, (1711- ), m, Howell Briggs,

William Gray, (1703-1744}, son of William Gray {1682-17386),
was known at first ag William Gray, Jr. On January 16, 1734,
Thomas Foster of Surry and John Clements of Isle of Wight,
deeded him 175 acres in Surry whereon Thomas Foster now
lives being the head of a branch and adjoining Ogburn, Allen
Warren, William Marriott and Mary Boston. {D, B, 1730-38,

. 515).
f He married Elizabeth, daughter of Captain William Browne
(1671-1746), widow of William Chamberlayne of New Kent and
removed to that county where he was a Justice in 1742, On De-
cember %, 1740, as "William Gray of New Kent'" he deeded John
Harris of Surry the 175 acres above mentioned, ''being the land
that John Clements, deceased, gave to Thomas Foster by will
dated May 12, 1704, and purchased by the said William Gray of
the said Thomas Foster and John Clements the younger. Teste,
J. Gray, Gilbert Gray, Robert Gray. (D. B. 3, p. 273} (see
Clement's family).
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In 1739, William Gray patented 5000 acres in Goochland
where some of the name still resides. December 4, 1744, he
again deeded land in Surry '"left him" by the will of William
Gray, dec, by will dated March 10, 1731, Hig children were:
Ethelred who married a daughter of Captain William Drew;
Lucy mentioned in will of Captain William Browne.

4. Gilbert Gray, son of William Gray, Sr., (1661-1719),
lived in Surry County where he made his will Alril 8, 1758,
probated December 10, 1764, (WB 8). Same is as follows:

""To son, Joseph Gray 550 acres given testator by the will of
said testator's father, exclusive of that known as Babbs, con-
taining 360 acres, also gives said Joseph Gray a tract purchased
by said testator of the Vestry of the Parish of Southwark, ad-
joining said 550 acres. Daughter, Eliza Marriott, wife of
Mathias Marriott, 3 negroes. Daughter Sarah Gray, 3 negroes,
one bed and furniture. Daughter Mary Gray, 3 negroes, one
bed and furniture, Daughter Lucy Gray, 3 negroes, one bed and
furniture, Son John Gray, son James Gray 4 negroes, one bed
and furniture and the tract of land known as Babbs given the
testator by the will of said testator’s father. Wife, Margaret,
the remainder of his estate during her natural life or widow-
hoad, Executrix, testator's wife; Executor, testator's son
Joseph Gray. Witnesses: Robert Gray, Hartwell Cocke, George
Dawson. "

Children;

I. Joseph, m,

II. John, m. Mary,.
IIl. Eliza, m. Mathias Marriott {17-1774).
IV, Sarah, m. Thomas WASHINGTON, Jr.
V. Mary, m. Christopher (?) Clinch.

VI. Lucy, dsp. 1773, left legacies to brother John Gray

and James Gray, the latter under age.

VII, James.

Joseph Gray, {(1707-1771}), m. lst December 14, 1728,
Sarah Simmons, daughter of Colonel John SIMMONS. The name
of his second wife whom he married in 1748 is unknown. Colonel
Gray was Burgess from Isle of Wight 1736-1748. His land fell
in Southampton County where he was one of the first Justices of
the County Court, 1749; Sheriff 1751, Burgess 1755 to 1769,
His will was dated August 30, 1769 and proved June 13, 1771,

Children of 1st wife. (V.M. 30, p. 64),
I. William (1732-1750} dsp. :
II, Mary, (1734- ), m, {1st.) Littleton Tazewell, m.
{2nd. )} Rev. William Fanning, .~
1Il. Elizabeth, (1736-1761).
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IV, Anne, (1738- ) .

XII, Jane, (1753-1754}).

Colonel Edwin Gray married Julia, daughter of Thomas God~
win of Nansemond. He was a member of the House of Burgesses
1769-17174, of the Virginia Conventions of 1774, 1775, and 1776;

V., S8arah, (1738- ), m. Major James Wall.
VI, John, {1741-1760).

VII, Edwin, {1743-1790) (see later).
VIII, Peter, (1745-1761)

IX, James, {1747-1807).

Children of 2nd., wife:

X. Joseph, (1749-1754), : i

XI. Luey, (1751- ), m, 1768, Col. John Flood Edmunds,
of Brunswick Co,, Va.

e A T e e

and of the House of Delegates and State Senate. He made his
will September 23, 1788 and same probated June 1790,

Children:

I. Joseph, will proven in Southampton, 1820, Children: ++
Sons, James and Joseph; Daughters, Sally and Nancy
Gray.

II, Edwin, m. (1) Julia Gray (2} Mrs. Gray nee Lewis.

He was Member of Congress from Southampton,
1799-1813.

1II. Thomas, m. Mrs. Brewer nee Cocke, His will was
dated September 6, 1831, and proven in Southampton
September 8, 1831. Children: Catherine, m. Richard-
son; Edwin, m, (2) Charlotte Langston; Joseph, m.,
Evelyn Davis; Anne; Robert, m. Mary Nicholson;
Thomas Ruffin, m, Mary Gray.

IV. Mary, m, September 1788, Daniel Simmons,

V. Henry Mills, m. Martha Hynes, made will 1814,

[P —
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JONES

The coat-of-arms of this family, as given by Robert Jones,
Attorney-general of North Carolina, who was a descendant, was;
Ermine three Lions (Wm. and Mary Quarterly, 1st Series, 19,
p. 281). These are the arms of the Jones family of Kent and
London. The first positively known ancestor of the family was
James Jones of Charles City and Prince George Cos., who was
born about 1640-42 and died at an advanced age in Prince George
Co, in 1719, James Jones was first granted land in Charles
City Co. March 1, 1663 {Nugent, p. 504), his larid being very
close to that of Rev. Richard Jones, who may have been his
father. However, it seems slightly more probable that both
these men were sons of David Jones, b. 1594, d. in Charles
City Co, between 1665 and 1673, who was settled in Virginia
as early as 1624 (cf. Hotten, p. 214; Nugent, pp 25, 167, 535;
Order Book 1655-65, pp. 104, 343, 529; Order Book 1672/4,

p. 524). The above references show that David Jones had a son
John, who died in 1657 and left a son John; and two daughters
Mary and Ann; but since his land was in the Parish of Weyanoke,
close to that of James Jones and Rev, Richard Jones, it is not
improbable that they were, also, his sons. The names David
and Richard were both perpetuated in the family of James Jones.

James Jones is mentioned in the will of Christopher Lewis,
dated Sept. 1, 1673, and probated Oct. 20, 1673, in Surry Co.,
who left a legacy to Mary Jones, daughter of James Jones, and
appointed Mr. Jones his executor (Surry D. & W. 1672-84, p.
35)., As executor, he deeded away the land that had belonged to
Mr. Lewis July 7, 1686 (D. & W. 1683-1709, p. 99). The
above may indicate a relationship to Mr. Lewis, perhaps
through James Jones' first wife, whose name is otherwise
unknown, The wife, Sarah Jones, referred to in his will, was
probably his second wife and not the mother of his children,
James Jones was again granted land in Charles City Co., in
Weyanoke Parish in 1683 and 1684, and he had a grant in Surry
Co. in 1702 (Grants Bks,, 7, p. 329, p. 488; 9, p. 4987). The
will of James Jones, dated April 6, 1719, and probated in
Prince George Co. May 12, 1718, leaves his property to "my lov-
ing wife and my wife's two sons''; daughter Mary Darden and her

317
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1 April 1793. Robert DAUGHTERY and Tabitha Hatfield. ~Sur. Jacob
Bajley. Wit, Samiel Kello, "p 88 - '

2 May 1782, . Theoph:lus DAUGHTRY and Lucretia Gardiner. Ministerst .
returns p 831 .- _ _— _ -

1i February 1760. Benjamin DAVIS and Winifred Cra.fi‘ord. Sur. Ben=
Jamin Rufﬁn, Wit. Richard Kello. p 5 .

Isle of Wight Co.
P 842

= October 1801, Edward DAVIS and Martha Gilliam, Sur, John James.
p 147 T

1 December 1781, Edwin DAVIS and Iucy Bailey. Sur. Anseld Jones.
Wit. Samiel Kello. p 31

15 August 1789, David DAVIS and
Married by Reve Do Co Barrow.

20 Decemﬁér‘l'??o. James ﬁAVIS and Diana Branche. Sur, Benjamin
Branche p 69 . o '

26 December 1796, James DAVIS and Sa.lly Moore, Sur, Thomas Lane.
Wit, John D. Hzussmanmn, p 112 '

3 Jarmary 1800. James DAVIS and Polly Boyidn, dau. of Brittain
Boykin, Sur. Jeremiah Cobb. Wit. Samuel Kello. p 132

17 September 1792, Joel DAVIS and Sarah Pond. Sur., Richard Pond.
Wit. Samuel Kello and John D. Haussmann. p 84

\ : ;
29 -April 1794. Joel DAVIS and Sally Pond. Sur. William Wellons.
‘Wit, Samel Kello, Married by Rev. Drewry Lane, p 96

6 August 1803. John DAVIS and Eljzabeth Lany Married by Rev., Drewry
" Lane. Ministers? returns p 653

20 July 1807. Jomn DAVIS and {Elizabeth Judkins. Sur. Mial Wall.
Wit. Benjamin Cobb. Married 6 . by A Lane. p 179

13 February 1791. Nathaniel DAVIS and Susanna Davis, Sur. Jacob
Darden, Jr. Wit. John D. Haussmarm. Married by Rev. George Gurley,
.Rector of 5t. Iuke's Parish, Episcopal Church 0

'9 December 1799. Nathaniel DAVIS and ¥ancy Barham,
Barham. Sur. Owen Myrick. Wit. Samel\Kello, Jr.

an. of Jolm
130

23 April 1803, Samel DAVIS end Mary Joyner (in bond). Martha
Joyner on back of bond., William Will4ams guardian of bride. Sure.
BenJanin Vick. p 154 ' - .
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‘Octoter 1769:™ * John Flocid/]i;ﬁDS ol/ Brunswick Co., and Lucy
Gray (yhder 21), dau. of Joseph Gra Esq. Sur, James Wall of
ck Co. Wit, lﬁch T A

-

lh March 1776. John EDMUNDS of Northampton Co., NeCe, and Susanna
Marget, dau, of Nicholas Mawget. Sur. William Elunt.  Wit. Samuel
Kello, Jessé Whitéhead and John Whiteheads.. p 23 ‘

18 December 1792, Samuel EDMUNDS end Elizabeth Blunt, Ministerst
returnsp632 T ' ' '

20 March 1793, West EDMUNDS and Elizabeth Jones. Married by Rev.
Jolm Meglemre, Ba.ptist. - Ministers? returns p &8

11 November 1779. William EDMUNDS and Martha Briggs. Sur. Samel
Kello, Wit. John Verelly. p 28 K

27 Decerber 1799. Albrldgton EDWARDS and Anne Vaugl'm " Sur. Bryant
Westray. Wit. Samel Kello, p 131

25 April 1731,. David EDWARDS and Margaret Wells (Wills). Ministers?
‘returns p 634 T B .

9 Jarmary 1804. Etheldred EDWARDS and Mildréd mer, dau, ‘of
Jacob Turners consent only Han-ied by Reve Benjamin Barmes,
Methodist. P 158 . ' )

22 December 1785, James EDWARDS and Martha Wills, dau. of Matthew
~ Wilis. Sur. Da.vid Edwards. Wit. Hichard Kello. P43

/ 7 \ . -

- 10 Deceiber 1789, Jenmes EEWARDS and Mary Kindred, Sur. Benjamin
Kindred. Wit, Francis Young, Jr. and James Millar. There is a
consent dated 28 Deci 1797, bearing the same namese P 63

23 Jauary 1783, Joel EDWARDS and Mary Fergusem. Ministers®
returns p 632 , .

20 Jamuary 1762, John EDWARDS and Sarsh Pitman (wilow). Sur.
John Crafford. Wit. RichardKellod

'- 18 ‘December 1809. Jordan EDWARDS and Keeten Johnson, dam. of
Willis Johnson. Sure. Jordan Beal. Wit. Harrison Minton and
Sa:;_me_l Kelio, P 196 .

- 26 September 1783. Kinchen EDWARDS and Miriam Brasey., Ministers®
returns p 633

21 -March 1791- Iavi EUWARDS and Cather:ine Tyler, daus of Edmond
Tyler. Sur. Jﬂhn Cleybon. Wit. John D. stm. p 72 -
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11 November 1790, John GLOVER, Jre. of Nansemond Co., and Polly

Darden, dau. of Robert Darden. Sur. John Wood, Wit, Samuel Kello,
p 63

10 March 1803, Samuel GLOVER and Sareh Jordan, Married by Rev.
Benjamin Barnes, lethodist. Ministers? returns p 656

18 June 1785, William GLOVER and Priscilla Gregorie. Ministers®
returns p 636 ' ' '

1 February 1780, Mills GODWIN and Sarah Blunt. Sur. Edwin Gray.
Wit, Samuel Kello. p 28

22 April 1788, William GORDON, of Isle of Wight Co., and Mzu'ﬁ' Parsons
of Surry Co. Married by Reve De Co Barrow. Ministers? returns p 640

23 October 1798. Benjamin GRAY and Milicent Massengale. Sur. William
Cray. 1fit. Samuel Kello. p 122

9 April 1789, Charles GRAY and /Amn B:mggs, Nancy on back ef bond.
Consent of Charles Briggs. John T. Blow in same space, probably
guerdian, OSur. Charles Briggs. Wit. Samel Kello, James Denson,
end Arthur Boykine. p 59

= August 1799. James GR.Y and Polly Pope. Sur. Jonas Bryaht. p 128

15 January 1794. 'HAlliam GRAY and Lydia Bryant. “Sur. Jonas Bryant.
1.75

"it. Samuel Xello. Yarried by Rev. Newit Vick. Ministers? returns
dated 5 Jane. 1796. p 94

L, February 1795 Matthew GREGORY anc Rcbeede Vicke Sure Benjamin
Andrews. Wit, Sarmel Kello. p 100

1 October 1792, John GRIFFIN and Patsey Francis, dau. of Iucy 4
Francis. -Sur. Simmons Drake. Wit. John De. Haussmamm. p 84

1 October 1789, Micajah GRIFFIN and Elizabeth Worrell. Married by
ieve Do Co EaI‘TO\_'.'. nisterst returns p 643

21 Aprdil 18C6. Mills GRIFFIN and Elizabeth Charles ™rith her guard=
ian's consent', OSur, Benjamin Griffin., p 170

26 April 1785, Shadrack GRIFFIN and Elizabeth Nelms of Isle of Wight
Coe Married by Rev. David Barrow. Ministers? returns p 638

20 January 1800, Shadrach GRIFFIN and Nancy Rosser. Sur. Benjamin
Lawrence, Wit, Samel Kello. p 132

2l, December 1796, Wright GRIFFIN and Elizabeth H. Suter (Luter?).
Sur. Turner Newsum, WVit, John D, Haussmarm. p 112
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4 December 180, Reuben HARRELL and Mary Beeman, Sur,
Harrell., Wit, Bolton Pierce and Israel Beeman, p 163

. 20 December 1774. Absalom and Elizabeth Jordan (widow).
Sur, William Harris. Wit. Edwin Gray Semiel Kello and Abraham
Hargrave. p 22

8 November 180%4. Amthony HARRIS and Sally Francis, Married by
Rev. Robert Murrell, Ministers' returns p 653

14 October 178l. Benjamin HARRIS and Elizabeth Miller. Sur.
John Clayton. Wit, Richard Kello, p 31

20 Jamiary 1801, Benjamin HARRIS and Rebecca Avent, Ministers?
returns p 651 :

5 guly 1781. Drewry HARRIS and Sally Iundy. Ministerst retums
p 630

12 December 1783. Drury HARRIS and Priscilla Wammock. Sur. Hardy
Applewhite. 25 Jan. 1784 on ministers® returns also Womack and
Drevwry. P 37

. 11 May 1775. Hardy HARRIS end Amn Thorpe Sur. Thomas Fitzhugh.
Wit, Samuel Kelloc. p 22

14 December 1786, Henry HARRIS and Mary Drew._ Sur, William
W‘eishe (or Wright)e p 49

13 November 1771, Howell HARRIS and
Jams\Jcmes. Wit, Samsl Kello. p 17

ary Hmm ("idm‘f). Sur.

19 December 1779. Howell HARRIS and
Ihrris. Wit._ Samel Kello and Thomas 'F

e Sur, Hardy
- p 28 -
13 August 1785, Howell HARRIS and Phebe (lanton. Sur. Benjamin

Harris. Wit, Francis Yowig, Jr., Drury Parker and Mildred Parker.
Married by Rev. John Maglamre, Returned 15 Oct. p I3

13, September 1794
Claud. Wit, John De

13 February 1790. Joseph HARRIS and Peggy lewis, dau, of Sarah
Lewis. Sur, Hardy Pope. Wit, Francis Younz, Jr. p 65

4 May 1789. Landon HARRIS and Amn Jomes. Sure Theophilus Scott.
Wit,. Wi].‘l.iachEldoe. p 60 -

15 December 1804, Matthew HARRIS and Elizabeth Westbrook, consent
only, Wit, Willie Francis., Married 20 Dec. by Rev. Robert Murrell.
p 163 : .
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9 January 1782,
Newsum, - Sur, Mos
Nevwsom married 12

‘sham NEWSUM and Sally Newsum, dsu} of Patience
Foster. Wit, William Thomas ote: Joseph
e 1760 Patience Jones, widow. . Joseph News
e_Patz.ence and dau. Sally.

P32 v - |
26 April 1805, James NEWS and Nancy Barnes. -Sur. Matthew
Murfee.  Wit. Bolton ierce P 166 . ' '

12 April 1800. Jo NEWS M and Patsy Joymer. Sur. John Newsu:ﬁ,
Sr. Wit. Samel Kello Council Vick. Married 18 dpril by
Rev. Benjamin Ba:rnes, hqcris . 135 : . :

NEWSUM and Elizabeth Vick. Sur. Howell
ied 6 Mar, by Rev, Benjamm Ba.mes,

= February 1803. Th
Beal., Wit,. Benjan:l.n Cob D
Methodist, p 153 ' .~ ‘f‘

22 June 1796. Tumer(NEWS[ﬁ{ and Silviah Murphee (Murfee). Sure
William Turner. Wit, 1 Kellos Turner Newsom and Silviah

Murfee -on Ministerst retums 5 June., Married by Rev. Robert
Morrell, p 108 o ' S

3 September I757. Wi
Gray, dau. of J. Gray.
chard Kellos. p 3

TFUM of Dinwiddie Co., and Elizabeth
es Well of Bnmsw:.ck Co. Wita

19 - Jamm am NEWSUM and Nancy Newsum, dau. of Joel
Newsone. Sur. ».T:Lll:.an Evans., Wit. Samel Kello. b 149

16 Juns<1800, -Charles FEWION ‘and Lnecy Morgan. Sur. Francis
Sterlirigs Wit. Joel biclexiore.' P 136 o o

10 April 1794. Hosea NEWTON and Crissy Blake." Su.r. Da_,vid Pope.
Wit. John D. Hmssmann. p 96 _ e
20 July 1:‘00. M ggans (Thggan) NEWTQN e.nd Sally. Morgan. Sur.
Joel HcLemﬂre. .I:Lt. Thomas Tlh.lleford. p 137

B July 1790. ”Iﬂliam NEWTON and Phe'be Worre]:l. Sur. Amos Worrell.
Wit. Francis Younc,, Jr. p 66 :

14, January 1783. Edward NIBIET and Selly Hough".. " Jhn Clayton
ardian of Sally. Sur. John Clayton, Jr, Wit. Samel Kello. p 35 -

10 December 1795, Chasmon NICHOLSON and Martha Jomes. Sur. John
Gilliam, Wit, John D. Haussmann, Married by Rev. John Maegl armre,
Ba.n‘;lst whp se.ys Lheasman. p 104 . .

- 1Y

26 November 1798, Etheldred NICHOLSON and Susan Nicholbon, dam.
of Mark Nicholson. Wit. Zebulon Lewis. Wit. Samuel Kello. » 123
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Walker, John) was born 25 Nov.1873, d. 25 Oct.

JOHN DLIVER5 BAYLOR, {(Thomas, William,

1907, m. 9 Aug.1906 Marie Johnston. Child:

1,

Johnston Baylor, b, 3 July, 1907,

khkikdkk

Note: The above data were collected by
the late Stephen Decatur, whose wife was
a descendant of both Baylor and Walker,
and by Vera Walker Morel, of New Orleans,
Louisiana, who descends from the Walkers
of Virginia,

THOMAS GRAY, ANGCIENT PLANTER
of
SURRY COUNTY, VIRGINIA

and Descendants

An account of Thomas Gray and his descend-
ants is given in Boddie's Virginia Historical
Genealogies, pp.308-316, but the identification
of Thomas Gray's children and grandchildren in
that book is somewhat defective, and fuller
examination of the evidence warrants this article.

Thomas Gray was born in England about 1593
and died in Surry County, Virginia, in 1657 or
1658, certainly before 1662, His birth date is
shown by his deposition, March 7, 1653/4, when
he gave his age as 60 and testified that Daniel
Hutton, deceased, left all his estate to his
wife Rebecca. (Surry Bk.l,p.4l.) Rebecca Hutton
wag his daughter, as we shall see later,His pro-
bable death in 1658 is indicated by the fact that
on November 2, 1658 Francis Gray (unquesticnably
his son) transferred a patent to his brother,
Thomas Gray, probably land inherited from his
father (ibid, p.121). He was certainly dead by
June 26,1662, when there is mention of a suit
about land between John Corker and the orphans of
Thomas Gray Sr., decd. (ibid, p.192). The last
record shows that he left orphans under age, a
fact ignored in the account of the family in
Virginia Historical Genealogies. Who these orphans
are, we shall show later,

That Thomas Gray was an "ancient planter" is
shown by a grant to him of 550 acres south of the
James River on Aug,27,1635, of which 100 acres

81
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was due him "as an ancient Planter at or before
the time of Sir Thomas Dale', 50 acres for his
first wife Anis Gray, 50 acres for his "now
wife' Rebecca Gray, and 350 acres for the trans-
portation of his two sons, Thomas and William
Gray, and five other persons whose names are
given (Nugent, Cavaliers & Pioneers, p-31). Dr.
Stewart's introduction to Cavaliers & Pioneers,
p.xxviii, states that Thomas Gray came to Vir-
ginia in 1608, but the writer has found no exact
confirmation of this. Hotten's Emi rants,p.176,
shows among "The Living in Virginia”, Feb. 16,
1623/4, Thomas Graye and wife (name not given),
Jone and William Graye; in the "Muster Roll",
January 1624/5 (p.228), it shows the family more
fully as "Thomas Graye came in the

Margaret his wife in the ,2Wiliiam Chelr
sonne“aged 3 years, Jone their daughter aged 6
years''.

There is some discrepancy between the a.-
count of the family in Hotten, and the 1635
grant mentioned previously., The grant shows
Thomas Gray's first wife as named Anis or Annis
though the renewal of this grant on May 26,1638
(Nugent, p.105), shows her name as Avis. Neither
grant mentions a wife Margaret, only the "now
wife' Rebecca, to whom he was married in 1635.
It is possible that the name Margaret is a mis-
take made by the compiler of the "Muster" early
in 1625, but it seems possible, too, that Thos.
Gray's first wife, Anis or Avis, had died, and
that he had married a second wife, Margaret, by
1625. In that case, however, Margaret must have
been transported to Virginia by someone else,
fgr Mr. Gray claimed importation for only two
Wives, Anis and Rebecca. Another difficulty is
that Mr. Gray claimed importation for his two
elder sons, William and Thomas, in 1635, though
it would appear from the records that the chil-
dren were all born in Virginia, and in fact
Thomas was not yet born in January, 1624/5. Per-
haps there was a trip to England made by Thomas
Gray some time after 1625, in which he took the
two boys along with him, which would account
for the claim of importation on their return: or
Thomas could have gone to England with his son
William to fetch his second (or third) wife Re-

§3

becca, and the son Thomas may have been born
before their return to Virginia. MHowever the
matter may be, Thomas was married to Rebecca
by Sept.11,1626, for on this date "Rebecka Graye"
was a witness before the General Court in Vir-
ginia (Minutes of the Council and General Court,
p.111). Thomas Gray was in Virginia at that
time, too, for he was a witness Oct.12,1626 (p.
119). Mr. Gray was a cousin of William Carter
(b.1600), another early settler of Surry County,
for in 1629 Carter's wife was reprimanded by the
Court for slandering "her cousin Gray's wife',
(p.197).

On July 20,1639, Thomas Gray was granted
400 acres near his other land (Nugent, p.113),
and on June 7,1642 he was granted 100 acres on
the east side of Gray's Creek (p.130), in the
same general location. The 1639 grant of 400
acres was voided for lack of seating, and was
granted to Samuel Abbott, Gent., April 10,1644,
"near the head of Gray's Creek adjoining the
land of Mr. John Corker" (Nugent, p.152}. How-
ever, Thomas Gray later bought it back, and on
March 14, 1652/3 he was granted 800 acres at the
head of Smith's Fort Creek, 400 acres having
been granted to Gray in 1639, and 400 acres pat-
ented by Samuel Abbott in 1644 and purchased by
Gray (Nugent, p.271). It looks as though there
is a duplication of land in this grant, and that
it ought to have been only 400 acres in all,
However, it seems to have been really 800 acres,
as later records show, Mr, Gray was apparently
married a third {or perhaps fourth) time around
1645, and left this land in his will to his
three youngest sonsg, William, John and Thomas
Gray, the "orphans'" mentioned in the dispute
about the land with John Corker in 1662. We shall
give the evidence later for these three young
sons. It is not surprising that Thomas Gray Sr.
gave the name William to one of these sons, for
the eldest son, William (b.1621), never appears
in the records after the 1635 grant, and probably
died as a young man. What is somewhat surprising
is that the name Thomas was given to the young-
est son by this third marriage, even though the
elder son Thomas (b, ca 1625-28) was still liv-
ing, Although it was rather unusual for sons of
different marriages to bear the same name, there
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are a number of examples of it that the writer
has come across. The will of William Rogers,
who died testate in Surry County in 1727 ment-
lons two sons named William, one the son by his
first marriage, the other the youngest son of
his second marriage (to whom he left his land);
and John Sojourner who died in Isle of Wight Co.
in 1728 mentions two sons named John, the elder
and the younger. Other examples could be sup-
plied from the old records, so that it is not
too surprising that Thomas Gray's second son (b.
1625-28) and his youngest son, born about 25
years later, were both named Thomas. The lack of
recognition of the "orphans'" of 1662, and the
fact that there were two Williams and two Thom-
ases among the children of Thomas Gray Sr. has
caused a good deal of confusion in the chapter
on the family in Virginia Historical Genealogies.
This chapter identifies the William Gray who
died testate in Surry County in 1714 with the
firsg, son of Thomas Gray Sr., who was born in
1621\%)incidentally making this man 92 or 93 years
of age at the time of his death, whereas the
William who died in 1714 was really the only son
of Francis Gray, son of Thomas Sr., and the utter
silence of the Surry records from 1652 on, about
the older William Gray, shows that he had died.
The chapter (V.H.G.) also identifies the William
Gray who died in Surry in 1719 as the son of
Francis Gray, while he was actually the William
Gray who was the eldest of the three 1662 "or-
phans", and born about 1648-49. There are other
minor errors in the chapter too, due to this
failure to recognize the "orphans'.

From the extant records, the following is

a correct account of the children of Thomas Gray
Sr. by his various wives, to whom we shall give

numbers in order to distinguish the two Williams
and the two Thomases. The proof will come later.

The children of Thomas Gray Sr. (1) by his

first wife Anis or Avis, as shown by Hotten,
were:

(2) Joan Gray, b.1618, of whom later.

(3) william Gray, b.1621, last appears in
in the 1635 grant to Thomas Gray,never
appears in the Surry Co. records, and
apparently died young.
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The children of Thomas Gray Sr. (1) by his wife
Rebecca, to whom he was married by 1626, were:

(4) Thomas Gray, b. ca 1625-28, of whom

later.

(5) Rebecca Gray, b. ca 1628-30, of whom
later.

(6) Francis Gray, b. ca 1630-35, of whom
later.

The children of Thomas Gray Sr. (1) by his last
marriage were:

(7) William Gray, b. ca 1648-49, of whom

later.

(8) John Gray, b. ca.l651-52, of whom
later.

(9) Thomas Gray, b. ca 1652-53, of whom
later.

The eldest of the 1662 "orphans', William
#7, was under the guardianship of Robert Castle
of James City County Sept.4,1664, on which date
Castle gave security in James City Co. for
William's property, recorded in Surry Co. Bk.1,
p.240, It is not unlikely that Castle had
married William's mother, the last wife of Thos.~
Gray #1, though there is no proof of this, as
the James City County records have been destroy-
ed. William Gray #7 does not reappear in the
Surry Co. records until 1673, when the Surry re-
cords show that he married Elizabeth, daughter -~
of Richard Jarrett of Lawnes Creek Parish, Surry
County (Surry Co. Bk.2, p.33). Apparently there
were living in Surry County from 1664 to 1673
only the two sons of Rebecca Gray, Thomas #4 and
Francis #5, and their two half-brothers (the
younger 1662 '"orphans"), namely, John #8 and
Thomas #9. William Gray #7 was probably born
ca 1648-9, as his younger brother, John #8,test-
ified on July 3, 1672, that he¥was "above 21
years of age" (therefore born“ca’ 1650-51), and v/
his youngest brother testified on the same date
that he was '"near 21", indicating his birth as
1652--3.,(Surry Co. Bk.2, p.20.)

The tithables Iists of Surry County are
fairly complete from 1668 through 1703, and John
Gray #8 first appears in the 1669 list as a
tithable (over 16) in the household of his half-
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brother, Francis Gray. Thomas Gray #9 does not
appear in the tithables until 1673, when he and
his brother John are shown living together as
2 tithables. The chapter referred to in Virgin-
1a Historical Genmealogies shows only one Thomas
Gray (#4) and states that he died unmarried in
1676. The following records show that there
were two Thomas Grays, #4 dying in 1672, and #9
dying in 1676, both unmarried; and that both
were brothers of Francis #6. It has been men-
tioned that Francis #6 transferred a patent to
his brother Thomas Gray #4 in 1658, apparently
part of his inheritance from his father,Thomas
Gray #1. On Sept.4,1666, Francis Gray testi-
fied that he had transferred to Thomas Gray(#4)
the plantation that the Hillyers had rented,
and that Thomas had rented it to Thomas Dicken-
son (Surry Co., Bk.l, p.275). On Nov.5,1667, Thos.
Gray (#4) deeded 100 acres on the west side of
Gray's Creek to Richard Case and Isabel his wife
and on the same date he deeded 67 acres in the
same }ocation to Thomas Cruse (Crews} and Joan
his wife (Surry Co. Bk.1l, pp.291,292). Thomas
Gray #4 died unmarried late in 1672, for on Jan.
Z,l67%/g? Fﬁancﬁs Grfy was appointed administra-
or of his brother Thomas Gra decd. (Surry Co.
Order Bk.#1,p.18); on March 1:1672/3(it is
stated that Thomas Gray obtained an order from
the Surry Co. Court for a survey of land be-
tween him and Thomas Crews, but dying, the sur-
vey is ordered for Francis Gray, his administra-
tor (ibid, p.21); on May 6,1673 Francis Gray,
brother and heir of Thomas Gray, Decd.' was in
a suit about the land sold to Thomas Crews by
Thomag Gray(ibid, p.23); on May 27,1673, the
Council and General Court,in the case of Francis
Gray vs. Thomas Cruse, ordered the land to be
surveyed according to the bill of sale ‘of Thom-
as_Gray to Cruse (Minutes, p.343); on Aug,25,
1673 there was an agreement of Francis Gray and
Thomas Cruse about the land (Surry Bk.2, p.23);
and on Jan.5,1674/5, Francis Gray and Mary his
wife made a deed for the land on Gray's Creek to
Thomas Cruse (Bk.2, p.6%9). On July 2,1672, pro-
bably before the death of Thomas Gray #4, Rich-
ard Case aged 53, Isabel Case aged 56, John Gray
(#8) aged above 21, and Thomas Gray (#9) aged
near 21, testified regarding the land sold by

T

87

Thomas Gray (#4) to Thomas Crews. The above re-
cords show positively that Thomas Gray #4 was a
brother of Francis Gray. That Thomas Gray #9,
the youngest of the 1662 "orphans', was also a
brother, is shown by his will, dated April 16,
1676 and probated May 2,1676 (Surry Bk.2,p.113)},
in which, after leaving bequests to his brother
Francis Gray's three daughters and to Francis's
wife, he leaves all his land to his brothers,
John and William Gray (#8, and #7). This land
was the 800 acre grant made to Thomas Gra
in 1652.} On Jan.Z3, 3 n Gray (#8) had

feady granted or let to John Moring 'land at
the head of Gray's Creek, quantity net known'',
which was obviously a part of his inheritance
in the 800 acres (Bk.2, p.98). To confirm th leiw
land after the death of Thomas Gray #9 on Sept. :
26,1678, William Gray #7 and John Gray #8 were I
granted 800 acres at the head of Smith's Fort
Creek, formerly granted to Thomas Gray by pat- ]
ent dated March 14,1652, and "descended to ye ]
said William and John Gray bye will of ye said 8
Thomas Graye their father, deceased" (Pat.Bk,.6,
p.b653). This grant shows that Thomas Gray
left a will (though the first will book of
Surry County has been lost) and that he left
his 1652 grant of 800 acres to his three young-
est children, namely, William #7, John #8, and
Thomas #9, or the survi

as already been stated that William

Gray #3, the eldest son of Thomas #1, born ca
1621 as he was three years old in Jan.1624/5,
apparently died before the records o
began in 1652. {The precedIng paragraph gives
at Is Known of Thomas Gray #4, and Thomasg
Gray #9, except that Thomas #4 made a deposition
Nov.7,1652 as "Thomas Gray Jr.' regarding a con-
tract of Daniel Hutton (his brother-in-law) to
build a house for Thomas Pittman (Surry Bock 1,
p.9). Unfortunately his age is not glven in the’
deposition, but he was probably born ca 1625-28,
the eldest son of Thomas Gray #1 and his wife
Rebecca, and as shown In the preceding paragraph
died unmarried in 1672, his whole brother Francis
Gray being his heir. Thomas Gray #9, youngest
son of Thomas #1, was born ca 1652-3 and died
unmarried in 1676, again as shown above. The
following is additional information about Thomas
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Gray's (#1) other children: Joan, Rebecca, Fran-
cis, William (#7) and John.

JOAN GRAY (#2), the eldest child of Thomas
Gray #1 oy his first wife Anis or Avis, was born
ca 1618, as her age is given as six yvears in the
"Muster" of Jan., 1624/5, She married John Hux,
who was borm in 1612 or 1613, as he gave his age
as 40 in a deposition Nov.7,1652 (Surry Bk.1l,p.
9} and as 46 in a deposition May 9,[65% {(ibid,
p. 131}, The first deposition concerned a con-
tract that Daniel Hutton (his brother-in-law)
had made to build a house for Thomas Fittman,
and Thomas Gray #4 also testified in this case.
The second deposition concerned land that was
connected with the estate of Thomas Gray #1,who
was apparently dead in 1659,

~ Among others who testified that Thomas
Gates gave 57 acres of land to Thomas Gray's
children, William and Joan Gray, John Hux aged
46 deposad that he married the daughter, Joan
Gray, and that he received 25 acres of the land
from her father as her share. Thomas Gates was
another ancient planter, who came to Virginia
in the "Swan" in 1609,was living with his wife
at Smith's Plantation in what later became Surry
County in February, 1623/4, is shown in the
"Muster" of Jan.1624/5 at Burrow's Hill with
his wife Elizabeth,(whe came over in the "War-
wick" in 1620),and had planted 100 acres in 1626
{Boddie, Colpnial Surry, pp.30,31, and 35, from
Hotten), Due to the fact that Thomas Gates
deeded half this land to Thomas Gray #1's two
children by his first wife, Anis or Avis, one
might suspect socme relationship here; however,
there 1s no proof of it,

On June 1,1662 John Hux deeded a mare to
Christopher Lewis {(Surry Co. Bk.l, p.190), and
he died before May 4,1668, when his second wife
and widow, Mary Hux, appointed John Harlow as
her attorney (Bk.1l, p.302)., The marriage contract
of John Harlow and Mary Hux is signed June 18,
1668, mention being made therein of her youngest
son, John Hux (Bk.1l, p.366), This youngest son
John Hux was probably the son of John Hux Sr.'s
second wife, Mary, but William Hux, who is shown
among the tithables (over 16) of John Harlow in
1668, was probably the som of the first wife,
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Joan Gray. In 1669 William Hux was living by
himself independently with a helper, Thomas
Wicks, so he was probably born about 1648--50)
llis step-mother's second husband, John Harlow,
was dead by 1672 (Order Bk.1, p-21), On Apgll
28,1673 William Hux deeded 25 acres to David
Andrews, perhaps the 25 acres th?t his mother
had been given from Thomas Gates's land (Burry
Bk.2, p.25). On Jan.15,1675/6, he deeded land
on Grays Creek to George Proctor, amount un-
specified, and on Jan.25,1675/6 he deeded 50 ac.
to Edmond Howell (Bk.2, pp.99, 100). Ome of the
witnesses to the first of these deeds was Thos.
Ironmonger, who was his brother-in-law, as will
be shown. William Hux died unmarried in 1677.
His will, dated Oct.31, 1676 and probated May 1,
1677 (Surry Bk.2, p.122), leaves bequests to
Samuel, son of William Thompson, and to thg
daughter of William Foreman; then leaves his
land to "the two daughters of my brother Iron-
monger, Susannah to have the land that Thomas
Ironmonger lives on, and Mary the land that T
live on®; and appoints '"my brother Thomas Iron-
mongexr" and his brother John Ironmonger, as ex-
ecutors. The above will and the f9110w1qg're-
cords show that Jean (Gray) Hux, in additiom foO
tler son William, had a daughter Mary who married
Thomas Ironmonger. She was probably older than
William Hux, for Thomas Ironmonger was born 1630-
1635. In a deposition March 3,1684/85, he gave
his age as 49, indicating his birth as 1635-36,
(D,& W. 1684-6, unpaginated), but on Now.7,1690
he gave his age as 60, indicating his b@rth as
1630 (Bk.4, p.183). Thomas Ironmonger is shown
in the Surry Co. tithables until his death, ba=
ginning with 1668; his brother John appears for
the first time in Thomas's family in 1673.

Thomas Ironmonger died in 1691, his invent-
ory being dated July 7,1691, with hls‘w1fe Mary
as administratrix (Bk.4, p.212-13). His brother
John was dead by Jan.19,1691/2, on which date
Mary Ironmonger testified as to John Ironmonger's
nuncupatory will, in which he left his property
to his brother's son and daughter and to his
cousin {i.e. nephew) Samuel Alsobrook's two
children (ibid, p.242), Mary (Hux) Ironmonger
died in 1693, her administration being granted
to Samuel Alsobrook and Mary his wife, May 2,
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1693 (0.Rook 2, p.71). This shows that Mary +~
Ironmonger, the daughter of Thomas mentioned in -
William Hux's will, had married Samuel Alsobrool,
Probably the daughter Susannah of William's will .
had died, for the "son and daughter' mentioned
in John Ironmonger's will as his brother's chil
dren were apparently younger children of Thomasj%
Ironmonger, namely, Ann Ironmonger who is ment-
ioned as an orphan of Thomas Ironmonger Nov.3,
1696 (0,Bk.2, p.170), and Thomas Ironmonger,who
appears first as a tithable in the family of
John Moring in 1702, indicating his birth as
about 1685-86, first appears in the records as

a mature man in 1708 (0.Bk.2, p.312), and died
without a will in Surry Co., in 1711 (Bk.&, p.53)
Samuel Alsobrook died intestate in 1696, adwmin-
istration on his estate being granted to John
Thompson Nov.5,1696 (0,Bk.2, p.173). An account
of his estate Jan.3, T6Y8/Y (Bk.5, p.158a) men-
tioms a child who was still at nurse at the home
of David Andrews, so that his wife Mary had pro-
bably also died. Jobhn Thowpson, in his will-—"
dated Avg.2,1698 and probated Nov.7,1699 (Bk.5,
p.185) desires that Samuel Alsobrook, son of _
Samuel Alsobrook deceased, be religiously brought
up by his executrix. This Samuel chose a guard-
ian Nov.9, 1708 (0.Bk.2, p.315), indicating that

he was at least 1% years old and bornm by 1694, —

William Howell, in his will dated May 9,
1718 and probated June 15, 1720 (Bk.7, p.272),
mentions his daughter Joan, wife of Samuel Also-
brook, therefore Samuel was-married by 17183 to
Joan Howell. Other orphans of Samuel Alsobrook -
Sr, and Mary Ironmonger mentioned in 1696 and
1697 (0.Bk.2, pp.177,178, and 190) were Mary,
John an omas Alsobrook. Thomas Alsobrook
was still living in 1718, when Thomas Bentley
wrote his will (W.Bk.7, p.455) and left a be-
quest to him. The Alsobrooks seem to have been
the last surviving descendants of Joan Gray #2
and her husband John Hux, though it is barely
possible that Thomas Hux Sr. of Surry County was
her eldest son. This Thomas P Sr. was deeded
50 acres by Benjamin Harrison July 4,1669 (Book
1, p.340), and married as his second wife Tun 167
Eleanor, widow of John Rawlings (0.Bk.,1l, p.66).
He last appears in the records Jan.l, 1679/80,
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when he and his wife Eleanor made a deed to
Benjamin Harrison (Bk.2, p.245). His son by a
first marriage, Thomas Hux Jr., appears with
his father in the tithables for several years,
beginning with 1677, but may have been the
second tithable (unnamed) in Thomas Hux's family
in 1669, indicating his birth as being about
1653, Whether this is true or not, Thomas Jr.
must have been born as early as 1656, for he
married Mary, the relict of John Orchard, in
1677 (Bk.2, pp.126, 127, and 129), It is the
age of Thomas Hux Jr. which makes it doubtful
whether he could have been a grandson of Joan
Gray (b.1618}, though it is barely possible if
Thomas Jr. was born as late as 1656 and his
father Thomas Sr. was born about 1635,. Even in
this case, however, Joan would have been only
17 when Thomas Hux Sr. was born, Whether or not
this is the case (and there is no evidence of
it, except the name Hux), Thomas Hux Jr. was
still living Dec.2,1695, when he and his wife
Mary deeded 100 acres to William Hunt (Bk.5, p.
75a). He seems to have died in 1696 or early
in 1697, for his widow, Mary Hux, is shown with
her son Thomas for one tithable in 1697 {indic-
ating that the son was born ca 1680-81},

REBECCA GRAY(#5), daughter of Thomas Gray
#1 by his wife Rebecca, was born probably ca
1628-30, married Daniel Hutton (who died early
in 1654), and probably died herself soon after
thig as quite a young woman. It has been pre-
viously mentioned that Thomas Gray Jr. (#4) and
John Hux testified on Nov.7,1652 regarding a
contract by which Daniel Hutton was to build a
house for Thomas Pittman (Bk.1l, p.9); also
that on March 7, 1653/4 Thomas Gray, aged 60,
deposed that Daniel Hutton left all hils estate
to his wife Rebecca (ibid, p.4l). Rebecca Hut-
ton must have died by May 20,1655, when Arthur
Jordan was guardian of Elizabeth Hutton and
leased to Robert Stanton 136 acres that had be-
longed to her father, Daniel Hutton {(ibid, p.77)

Elizabeth Hutton married WNicholas Perry,
and was dead without issue by March 11,1671/2,
on which date Nicholas Perry deeded to Arthur
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Jordan the land cof Daniel Hutton, Perry having
married Elizabeth Hutton, the heiress of Daniel,
and she being dead (Book 2, p.8). That Eliza-
beth Hutton was the daughter of Rebecca Gray #5
is proved by the fact that on March 7, 1687/8
William Gray of Southwark Parish, as "mext
cousin and heir of Elizabeth Huttom", deeded
the 136 acres of Hutton land to Charles White
(Book 4, p.50). This William Gray was the

son of Francis Gray #6, whole brother of Thos.
Gray #4 and Rebecca Gray #5, as shall be seen.

FRANCIS GRAY (#6) was apparently the young-
est son of Thomas Gray #l by his wife Rebecca,
and born ca 1630-35, It has been mentioned that
his first appearance in the records was in 1658,
and %iven the evidence that he was '"brother and \
heir" of Thomas Gray #4, and also brother of the {
three sons of Thomas Gray #1 by his last marr-
iage, namely, William, John and Thomas Gray #9.
It has also been mentioned that Francis Gray was
in 1672 and 1673 involved in the dispute about
the land deeded by Thomas Gray #4 to Thomas
Crews, Francis was also, in 1675, involved in
a suit about land with Col.Thomas Swann(Minutes
of the Council and General Court, pp.416,
Francis Gray died in 1679, his widow, Mary Gray,
being appointed his administratrix May 27,1679,
with George Foster as one of her sureties (Bk.2,
p.208). By July 6, 1679, Mary had become the
second wife of Owen Myrick, who on that date
appointed her his attorney, and she is specific- i
ally mentioned as ''relict of Francis Gray" (0.B.
1, p.288; also 0.B,2, p.248). The records show
that Francis Gray #6 and his wife Mary had three
daughters and one son, William, who was born in
1662, It has been previously mentioned that
the will of Thomas Gray #9 in 1676 leaves be-
quests to "my brother Francis Gray's three dau-
ghters", and '"the wife of my brother Francis
Gray'". One of the daughteis was Joan Gray,who
as "daughter of Francis Gray'", was left a be-
quest in the will of Thomas Weeks, dated Mar.1,
1675/6 and probated May 2, 1676 (Bk.2, p.113), i
Another daughter was Mary Gray, as on July 3,
1683 Owen Myrick (her stepfather) was ordered
to give an account of the estate of Mary Gray,
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orphan of Francis Gray (0.Bk.1l, p.406). The
name of the third daughter 1s unknown, and it is
uncertain what became of any of them.
The son, Willlam Gray, as will be shown, is
mentioned in the will of his half-uncle, John
Gray #8, in 1683, as "my cousin Will Gray, son
of Francis Gray, deceased'". The tithables of
1678 show Francis Gray with his brother, John
Gray #8, and his son, "William Gray Jr." in his ngi
family, showing that the son William was 16 in Vo
that year and born 1662. This birth date is-
confirmed by the fact that this William Gray b
gave his age as 28 in a deposition Nov.7,1690"
(Bk.4, p.l183a), It has been mentioned that the
Gray article in Virginia Historical Genealogies
confuses this William Gray both with his older
half-uncle William Gray {(born 1721), and with
his younger half-uncle William Gray #7, the
latter being said to be the William who was born
in 1662, though he was 12 or 13 years older.
William Gray son of Francis is shown as a
tithable in the family of his mother, Mary Gray,
in 1679; after her marriage to Owen Myrick, he
is shown as a tithable in the family of Daniel
Snooks in 1680, and in 1681,1682 and 1683 he is
shown in the family of George Foster. All these
regords were from Southwark Parish, while the
other William Gray (#7) was living at the time
in Lawnes Creek Parish, William Gray contlnues
to be shown in Southwark Parish (once or twice
called "William Gray Jr." to distinguish him
from his half-uncle, William Gray #7, who around
1690 moved to Southwark Parish from Lawnes Creek)
through the last tithables list of 1703, None of
these lists shows a son, so that he apparently %&
married somewhat late-in life, - -
The will of William Gray (i.e, son rof
Francis), dated \Feb.10,1710/1lt-and probated Oct.éﬂgw
20,1714 (Book 5, 212), leaves a cow apiece to
Henry Clark and Charles Tucker, then the rest of
his estate’ to his wife Mary and son Thomas, with
his wife, William Foster, and David Andrews as
executors; the last two men were witnesses to
the will as well. The Surry Quit Rent Roll of
1704 sheows William Gray (i.e. son of Francis)
with 100 acres of land. The same roll shows his
uncle, Capt.William Gray (#7) with 1750 acres,
and the latter's two sons, William Jr. and John

| A
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Gray, the first with 1050 acres and the second [\//\
with 200 acres. On May 20, 1713 William Gray ” f
petitioned that his son Thomas be exempted from

levies, indicating that Thomas had just become

16, therefore born about 1696/7, and that he

probably suffered from some physical disabilit

(0.Book 1713-1718, p.5). On Aug.21,1717 Thomas -

Gray, orphan, chose William as guardian |
5 (ibid, p.121). Although tifey may only have been %
. neighbours, the fact that William Gray, son of il

. Francis;~Tived for several years in the family
3 of George Fostey, that William Foster (son of

/ Geor was xecutor of his will and later.
\iguardian of his son Thomas, may indicate that |
. George Foster was a brother of Mary, wife of
{\ Francis Gray #6.c If so, a deed frdﬁﬁG§6f§E~fg;j] )42,
ter and Elizabeth his first wife, Aug.1,1674, I~
N for lgnd that lc';}ald belonged to his father adjoin-
ing Thomas Woodhouse and John Tw or Tro Bk.2, |
p.61) shows that the father was %igliam Fzgéer, F“~1§$L
who jointly with George Adkins was gran . 4,/”””’
N\ acres adjoining Thos.Woodhouse and John Twy, May'
\) 23,1642 (Nugent, p.129), and later was granted izfﬁ
%ﬁ. the whole acreage Jan.6,1643/4 (ibid,p.150). 1If
' »Mary, wife of Francis Gray, was a sister of
|, George Foster, then she was also a daughter of
\§ this William Foster. The article on the Gray —
family in Va.Historical Genealogies calls Francis
£ Gray (#6) Capt.Trancis Gray, identifying him with |

\E ' Capt.Francis Gray who on Nov.16,1661 receipted N
9, Nathaniel Stanton of debts (Bk.l, p.175). This

\q\\ identification is possible, but the Capt.Francis 2
Gray of this receipt seems very probably a much
older man, Francis Gray of Charles City County,

,§ who will be dealt with at the end of this chapter.

. WILLTIAM GRAY (#7),as mentioned previously,
§ was born probably ca T648-49, the eldest of the

\y three sons of Thomas Gr.y #1 by his last wife.
%, He was by far the wealthiest and most prominent
%ﬁ 'Y of Thomas Gray #1's children, serving as Justice
\Q; and Sheriff of Surry County, and as Burgess 1710--
Y, pl 1715. He died in 1719 at the age of about 70
years. He probably spent his early years in
‘T~James City County with his guardian,” Robert
q + Castle, but returned to Surry County in 1673,
) ' married Elizabeth, daughter of Richard Jarrett,
aﬁ K*§ and appears in Lawnes Creek Parish, Surry County,

in 1673 with 3 tithables.
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Richard Jarrett died in Surry County in -

1672. His will, dated July 13,1672 amd probated

Jan.3, 1672/3 (Surry Bk.2, p.21), méntions his

son Charles, daughter Elizabeth, wife Margery, )
and his brothers in England. An account of Rieh-
ard Jarrett's estate, Dec.2,1673, signed by the

widow Margery, now Margery Chambers, shows a

legacy of 4 cows,-a chest, a gun, an iron pot,

4 pewter dishes, and a mare,filly, paid to Will-

iam Gray (Bk.2, p.33). The items” shown in this

legacy were exactly the property that Richard "

Jarrett left to his daughter Elizabeth in his

will, showing that William had married the dau-

ghter Elizabeth during the year 1673. On March
3,1673/4 (0.Bk.1l, p.48) it is stated that Will-
iam Chambers had married the relict of Richard

Jarrett, and mention is made of Richard's son

Charles. William Chambers died in 1677,leaving
two children, William.and Mary Chambers by a
previous marriage. On May 12,1677 administration
on William Chambers was granted to Margery Cham-
bers, (Book 2,p.128), and in the same year Mar-
gery Chambers gave bond for the estate of qparles
Jarrett, orphan of Richard, with Capt.Charles )
Barham and William Gray assureties (Bk.2,p.125).
On Sept.4,1677 William Chambers, orphan _of Will-
iam, chose William Gray as his guardian, amd the
estate of Mary Chambers was also turned Eyer to
William Gray by Margery (0.Bk.l, p.157).

The tithables of 1678 show in Lawnes Creek
Parish, William Chambers as one of the 4 tith-
ables of William Gray, and Charles Jarrett.as a
tithable of '"widow Chambers', indicating that
both William Chambers and Charles Jarrett were
born by .1662 or earlier. The date 1661-62 seems
the probable birth date of Charles Jarrett, but
William Chambers may havée been born in 1660, as
on July 5,1681 he said he was of full age and
claimed his estate (0.Bk.l, p.342). However,the
estate was not turned over to him until March 5,
1682/3 (Bk.2, p.325), so that probably 1662 is
the correct date of his birth after all. The
orphany Mary Chambers, was married by May 3,1687
to William Holliman (0.Bk.1l, p.561). Elizabeth
Jarrett, the wife of William Gray and daughter
of Richard and Margery Jarrett, must have been
older than her brother Charles, and born in the

-]
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late 1650's to have married in 1673.

On Nov.15,1677 William Gray (#7) and John
Gray (#8), "joint heirs of their brother Thomas -
Gray, decd." (i.e.Thomas #9), deeded 100 acres
of land to Col.Thomas Swann (Book 2, p.145). It
has been mentioned that these two brothers had
been granted in 1678 the whole 800 acre patent
of their father Thomas Gray Sr. in 1652, Will-
iam Gray #7 proceeded to accumulate land rather
rapidly. 1In 1680 he patented 680 acres in
Lawnes Creek Parish (Pat.Bk.7, p.27) which he
and Elizabeth his wife sold to Robert Caufield
in 1689 (Book 3, p.108). He was still living
in Lawnes Creek Parish in 1689, though apparent-
ly he had moved briefly to Southwark Parish in
1685, when he and his wife Elizabeth deeded 400
acres to Samuel Plaw, and he calls himself "of
Southwarke Parish" (D. & W, 1684-86,unpaginated).
By 1704, as mentioned previously, he owned 1750
acres and his son William Jr. owned 1050 acres.
William Gray #7 seems to have lived pretty
steadily in Lawnes Créek Parish, however, up to
about 1690; after that he appears in Southwark
Parish, where his nephew wiiliam Gray, son of
Francis, lived. The lists of tithables show him
as Lieut.William Gray in 1692; his eldest son,
William Gray Jr., appears first in his family in,/
1693, indicating that he was born about 1676/7; -
his second son, John Gray, appears in his family
for the first time in 1696, showing that he was
born 1679-80; and he is called Capt. William
Gray in 1700 and later years. The second son,
John Gray, was left land by his uncle, John Gray
#8, in 1683, and is shown as the owner of 200 i
acres in 1704. John, son of William Gray #7%
was apparently the John Gray who died in Surry .
County in 1708, unmarried. The will of John
Gray, dated June 23,1708 and probated Nov.9,1708
(Bk.5, p.403) mentions his sister Lydia,brothers-
Thomas and Gilbert, and makes his father exec- -
utor. The article in Va. Historical Genealogies
places this John Gray as the son of William Gray
who died in 1714 (i.e. the son of Francis Gray)),
but the tithables lists never show this William
with any sons but the son Thomas (b. ca 1697),
while William Gray #7 certainly had a son John
as well as a son Gilbert, though his will does
not mention a daughter Lydia nor a son Thomas. -

.
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Hewever, they probably died before their father

did in 1719. Neither Thomas nor Gilbert was ol

enough to be shown as a tithable by 1703. o P
The will of William Gray #7, dated June 3, <deq/

1719 and probated Nov.18, 1719 (Bk.7, p.226),

mentions his sons William and Gilbert; the son 5£yff

William's four sons William, Robert, Joseph and G-

Thomas; daughters Mary Gray, Faith Ruffin, and bﬁ;T’
Priscilla Gray; grandchildren William Andrews, R
Elizabeth Edwards, William Gray and William Ruff- v 174
in; appoints his son William as overseer of the 773q§

will; and appoints son Gilbert as executor. From

the above records, it appears that William Gray Nﬂﬂefff
#7 had four sons and six daughters (possibly o L
only five) as follows: (1) William Gray, born ’;ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ"
1676-7; (2) John Gray, b. 1679-80, d. unmarried Lo
in 1708; (3) Thomas Gray, b. after 1687, men- 7%@
tioned in the will of his brother John Gray in

1708 but apparently died unmarried before his A
father; (4) Gilbert Gray, b. after 1687; (5)

Mary Gray, unmarried in 1719; (6) Faith Gray,

the first wife of William Ruffin (b.1683) and

mother of the grandson William Ruffin mentioned

in the will of William Gray #7; (7) Priscilla

Gray, unmarried in 1719; (8) Lydia Gray,mentioned

in the will of John Gray in 1708, either died

unmarried before 1719, or was identical with one

of the two following daughters: (9) a daughter

who married an Andrews and was the mother of the
grandson William Andrews mentioned in the will

of William Gray #7; and (10) a daughter who mar-

ried an Edwards and was the mother of the grand-
daughter Elizabeth Edwards mentioned in the 1719

will. So far as the writer knows, the account

given in Va.Historical Genealogies about the

chitdren—-apd descendants of the sops William and
(::Ezzgggﬁfﬁrgy is substantially correct,; except
illiam's birth date is put too 1 (1682 ;;q¢4

instead of 1676/7), and that his wifeMary,widow

of John Seward, is stated to have been a daughter

of Robert Crafford, whereas she seems really to 6
have been a daughter of Randall Holt (d.1679).and27/€’

his wife Elizabeth (d.1709). The evidence for

this is as follows: John Seward, Mary's first &
husband, died early in 1699, Mary being appointed )5S
his administratrix March 5,1698/9 (0.B.2, p.195) ._M)%
John and Mary Seward had two children, William

who was b. ca 1696, and Mary, b. probably about
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1698. Evidence in a lawsuit about the Seward
property in 1713 shows that John was born about
1674 (24 years of age when he died), and that
his son William was born about 1696 (17 years

of age in 1713) (0,Bk.3, pp.3,4). Mary, orphan
of John Seward, is mentioned soon after his
death, on March 5, 1698/9 and on July 4, 1699
§0.Bk.2 pp.195, 200), Randall Holt in his will
in 1579 mentions only his three sons by name ,

but the will of Elizabeth Holt, his widow, dated
; March 4, 1708/9 and probated May 3, 1709 (Bk.5,
p.411) mentions among other legatees ''my grand-
daughter, Mary Seward", who seems unquestionably
to have been the daughter of John and Mary Sewand
mentioned in 1699 above,

JOHN GRAY (#8), the second of the three
youngest soms oi T%omas Gray #1 by his last
marriage, was, as has been seer., born ca 1650-51
and died in 1683, He and his brother William #7
deeded land to Col.Thomas Swann in 1677 and were
jointly granted the 800 acres of Thomas Gray #1%
patent in 1678. In 1678 John Gray was still liv-
ing with his brother Francis Gray #6 as a tith-
able in the latter's family and presumably un-
married. He appears as an independent tithable
in Southwark Parish in 1679 and later years and
mgrrlgd some time around 1680, Mary .
His will, dated May 16, 1683 and probated July 3
1683 (Book 2,p.330§, mentions his wife and daugh
ter;laII his land to "my Cozen John Gray, Will
Gray's son"; if rhe daughter dies, to brother
William Gray's children; leaves a bequest to "my
Cozen Will Gray, son of Francis Gray decd.': and
appoints his brother William Gray “and his"cousin"
William Gray to oversee the will} and makes his
wife executrix. Mary Gray, "relict of John Gray
decd.", was appointed his executrix by the Court
on Nov.6,1683 (ibid, p.339). By 1684 John Gray's
widow was married to Robert Nicholson. The in-
ventory of John Gray, March 3, 1684/5. was signed
by Mary Nicholson, and the account of John Gray's
estate for the year 1684 was sworn to by Robert
Nicholson, May 5,1685 (from D, & W. 1684-86, un-
paginated). As seen from the above, John Gray #8
left only a daughter, and her name and what be-
came of her is not known. It seems not improbable
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that she married William Demnnis (b. ca 1664-3},
son of Robert and Ann Demmnis, for on Nov.19,1725
Willijam Dennis of North Carolina deeded to Will-
iam Gray (i.e. William, eldest son of William
#7) the 800 acres patented by Thomas Gray #1 on .~
March 14,1652/3 (D. & W, 1715-30, p.621). It is
difficult to see how William Dennis had any
claim to this land unless he had married the
daughter of John Gray #8. The latter in his will
left all his land to John Gray, son of William
#7, but this John had died, and it must have
been felt that his eldest brother and heir need-
ed confirmation from the heirs of John Gray #8
of the ownership of the 800 acres, which had
apparently been kept as a unit for nearly 75
years.,

*hekdediiokk

Other Grays Who Appear in the Early Records
of
Surry County

HENRY GRAY of LAWNES CREEK PARISH:

On September 7, 1675 John Gray Sr. was
ordered by the Surry Court to pay William Tooke
500 pounds of tobacco according to the will of

Ridley, decd., and then John Gray Jr.
be free (0.Bk.l, p.104)}. The name "John Gray Sr.
seems to be a mistake for Henry Gray, for Will-
iam Ridley who died in Isle of Wight County in
1671 was stepfather of William Tooke's wife Jane
and in his will specifically states that if
Henry Gray will pay Tooke 500 pounds of tobacco
John Gray is to be free. This Henry Gray seems
to have been from Isle of Wight County origin-
ally and not a son of Thomas Gray of Surry Co,
He appears in the tithables of Lawnes Creek
Parish, Surry Co., from 1674 on. The year 1674
shows him already with John Gray as a tithable
in his family, so that John was born at least
as early as 1657-8. Richard Gray appears as a
tithable with Henry Gray in 1679, so that Rich-
ard was born ca 1662-3, On Sept.2, 1684 Henry
Gray was excused from all levies, indicating
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that he was perhaps around 60 and so borm ca
1624 (Book 3). On Jan.4, 1684/5 Henry Gray deed-
ed to his son, John Gray, '"who is shortly to
marry Hannah, daughter of Thomas Ward, decd."
two hundred acres, which John Gray immediately
deeded to Hamnah as a jointure (Book 3). This
Gray family seems not to occur later on in the
Surry records, and may have moved to Isle of
Wight County.

CAPT.FRANCIS GRAY of CHARLES CITY COUNTY:

It has already been mentioned that Capt.
Francis Gray, who, on Nov.23, 1661, receipted
Nathaniel Stanton of all debts (Surry Book 1,
p.175), was probably of Charles City County,
instead of Francis Gray #6 of the Thomas Gray
family., This Francis Gray (his name is frequent-
ly spelled Grey rather than Gray in the old re-
cords) was granted 750 acres in Charles City Co,
Nov.24,1653 (Nugent, p.231). A Grace Singleton
whom he claimed as one of his transportees in
this grant was probably his wife Grace. Capt.
Francis Gray appears a number of times in the
surviving Charles City Co. Order Book, 1655-66,
and was a prominent man, being a Justice of the
County and several times a Burgess. In 16635,
Mrs. Grace Gray appealed to the Charles City Co,
Court about her husband’s (Capt.Francis Gray's)
treatment of her. According to her testimony,
she had been married to Francis Gray for twenty-
four years, had brought him a good dower at the
time, though he was poor, and had borne him six
living children, names not given, of whom three
were married in 1665.

Capt., Francis Gray does not appear in the
scanty Charles City County records after 1666,
and probably died before 1677, the next records
extant. Two of his and Grace Gray's children are
known and two others very probable.

. On April 3,1663 Capt. Francis Gray of Mar-
tin's Brandon, Gent., leased 100 acres to Thomas
Mudgett for 21 years, and "if Thomas has issue
by his wife, daughter of Capt,Francis Gray", the
land is to become Mudgett's (0.B. 1655-66,p.381),
The daughter was probably Ann Mudgett or Muggett,
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widow of Thomas,decd., who died in Surry County
in 1690, Ann Muggett's will, dated Sept.4,1689
and probated in Surry, July 1, 1690 (Bk.4,p.144)
mentions Philip Shelley, Jxr., and his youngest
brother John Shelley; Elizabeth Sugars; grand-
daughter Ann Shelley; and Philip Shelley, Sr.
Another daughter of Francis and Grace Gray was
Elizabeth Gray, of whom nothing further is
known,

On Aug.3, 1664 Capt.Francis Gray and Mrs.
Grace Gray testified in regard to the property
of Shelby $parrow, decd., and said that Sparrow
left a small Bible to their daughter Elizabeth
{probably then unmarried)} (Charles City County
0.Bk. 1655-66, p.491).

The eldest child of Francis and Grace Gray
was probably Peter Gray, to whom on June 6,1660
Thomas Busby of Surry County deeded his house
and 300 acres on Chippoakes Creek, the deed
being witnessed by Francis Gray (Surry Bk.1l,p.
162)., On Nov.10,1660 Thomas Busby and Peter
Gray made an agreement that Thomas should have
the use of the tobacco house for a year (same
reference). This is the only appearance of
Peter Gray in the Surry Co. records, though he
appears a number of times in the Charles City
Co. Order Bogk 1635-66. One record there shows
that Peter Gray sued Francis Hogwood (who later
moved to Surry Co.) for being responsible for
the death of Peter's wife, Mary Gray., If, as
seems likely, Peter Gray was a son of Capt.Fran-
cis Gray, he must have been only about 18 years
0ld when he was deeded the land by Thomas Busby
in 1660, for Francis and Grace Gray were not
married until 1640-41.

The fourth known or probable child of Fran-
cls and Grace Gray was probably the wife of
Thomas Busby of Surry County, whose name was
Susannah. On July 22, 1671, Thomas Busby made a
deed of gift to his daughter, Grace Busby, of a
mare filly, to come to Grace when she was ten
years old, and mention is made in this document
of 150 pounds of tobacco, which Thomas owed to
Capt. Gray, deceased (Book 1, p.389).

Another daughter of Thomas Busby was Jane
Busby, whose mark for cattle was handed in aleong
with that of her father in 1674 (Bk.2, p.55). A
son was Jeffrey Busby, who appears as a tithable
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ig his father's family in 1687, so born ca 1670-
1671,

On April 20,1680 Thomas Busby and Susannah
his wife deeded 100 acres to Daniel Roome,George
Foster and Thomas Flood being witnesses {Book 2,
p:273), and they made a deed Oct.20,1681 to
Edward Greene (Book 2, p.301). In the latter
deed the husband 1s called Thomas Busby Sr.,
indicating that he had a son named Thomas, as
well as a son Jeffrey. Thomas Busby Sr, was b.
ca 1632 as he gave his age as 59 in a deposition
in 1691 (Bk.4, p.228). He was Interpreter to the
Southern Indians 1682-1691 (Journal of the House
of Burgesses, 1659/60-1693, pp.Ll71, 254, 34l,
and 343). He szeems to have had two other daugh-
ters, Mary and Sarah, who as Mary Malonme and
Sarah Jones, '"daughters of Thomas PBushy, decd.”
made a deed in Prince George County in the 1720's
(Prince George D. & W. 1713-28, p.%93).

The records regarding Thomas Busby and his
family, above, show that Capt. Francis Gray died
1671 or earlier. Though not immediately con-
nected with the family of Thomas Gray of Surry,
Capt. Gray may have been a kinswman, since Thomas
Gray named one of his sons Francis.

Fohdekdofdod

Contributed by:

Benjamin C. Holtzclaw
11 Ampthill Road
Richmond, Virginia

WEATHERSBEE of VIRGINIA

North Carolina
and

Other Southern States

The name has been spelled in various ways.
The Census of Bladen County, North Carolina,l1790
gives Cade Weathersbee as "Kade Witherby". The
name also appears as Weathersbie, Wethersby,etc.
in early documents.

1. Bartholomew Weathersbee, born 1593/4 in
England, married Dorythie .
"Musters of the Inhabitants {n Virginia,
Elizabeth Citie": Bartholomew Wethersbie
and Richard Boulton their Musters 16 Feb.
1623/24,

Bartholomew Wethersbie aged 30 in the
Providence 1616. {(Adventurers of Purse and
Person, Jester and Hiden, p.2>.)
Dorythie Wethersbie aged 30 in the London
Marchant 1620, 4 98 e M q
Fichard Boulton age in the Mary an
James, 1610. Ricﬁard in tﬁe Swan''
EHotten, p.251}.

Bartholomew and wife Dorythie, b. 1593, were the

only Weathersbees listed in Virginia in February

1624,

"A list of the BURIALLES in Elizabeth Citcy
1624 (Hotten, p.257) Wethersby, Aug.8'".
Therefore Dorythie Weathersbee died four years
after her arrival in Virginia,

A list of those living in Elizabeth Citty
at Bass's Point, Feb.1625/6 (Hotten,p.185) shows.
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ADVENTURERS OF PURSE AND PERSON

30. FRANCIS? GRAVES (Francis?, Thomas!), probably born in
Rappahannock County, lived most of his life in Essex where he is
mentioned, 8-9 Sept. 1709, as of South Farnham Parish when he
sold 125 acres in St. Ann's Parish.'5* His will, 25 June 1746~18 Oct.
1748,15! named his wife Anne and children.

Issue: 81. Witliam%, of Caroline County, married
Dorothy ——;152 82, Clarat, married, before 1746, Capt. Aaron
Higginbotham, Sr., of Amherst county who left will 16 Sept. 1778~
3 Oct. 1785;153 83. [ane; 84. Ann4; 85. Elizabeth?; 86. Mary4,

31. RICHARD? GRAVES (Francis?, Thomas!) had left Essex
County by 1714, at which time he probably was engaged in
coastwise trade for, about 1708, he had purchased one-half part-
nership in a sloop from Francis Shackleford.'* Presumably, he is
identical with the Richard Graves who was taxed for the first time
in Craven Precinct, N.C., in 17151 and wha in his will, 11 April
1730-Sept., 1730, mentions Richard and Francis, sons of
“Thomas Graves my Brother in Virginia.” He represented Craven
Precinct in the North Carolina Assembly, 1726.157 He married
Hannah (Kent) Smithwick Green, daughter of Thomas and Ann
Kent and widow of John Smithwick and Farnifold Green, who
survived him,1%

Issue: 87, Thomas?, died about 1767, Craven Co., N.C., married
Sara Turner;!® B8. Mary?, married, after 1730, Richard Nixon,
who represented Craven County in the North Carelina Assembly,
1742-45,180 and left will 5 March 1745/6—June 17464

32. THOMAS? GRAVES (Francis?, Thomas!), born about 1684,
remained in Essex County and married, about 1708, Elizabeth
Moody, born 1690, daughter of John and Mary Moody of Essex, 142
wha relinquished her dower rights, 19 June 1739, in land deeded
by her husband.'®$ Thomas? died by 15 Feb. 1742/3 when John
Graves obtained administration on his estate. 51

150 Exsex Co. Deeds & Wills 13, pp. 248~
50.
151 Essex Co. Will Bk, 8, pp. 90-91.

152 Essex Co. Deed Bk. 27, pr. 136.
153 Amherst Co. Will Bk, 2, p. 254, Wil)
XXVI, pp. 265-68.

154 Essex Co. Order Bk. L708-14, pp.
608--09.

155 The Norih Carolina Genealogreal Society
Journal, 1, p. 55. In 1719 he was charged
with 1900 acres and with 1400 acres be-
longing 10 the orphans of Farnitold Green
(sbad., p. 59}

156 Secvetary of Swte records, North
Carolina Archives, file SS Wills.

157 North Carcling Government, 1585
1979 (Raleigh, 1981), p. 35,

158 fournal of North Carcling Genealogy, X,
pp. 1379-83.

154 W(2) XVIL, p. 302,

160 North Carolina Governmeni. 1385-
1979, p. 41.

161 ], Bryan Grimes. Ahtract of North
Carvhma Wills (Raleigh, 1910), p. 267,

162 Essex Co. Will Bk. 6, 1735-43, pp.
147-58, will of john Moody, LU Dec.
1735~20 March 1738/9.

163 Essex Co. Deeds ke 21, pp. 422-25.

164 Essex Co, Will Bk. 6, p. 418.
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Issue: 89, John*, administrator of 'Thomas® and presumed 10 be
a son;185 90, Richard?, named in the will of his uncle Richard?
Graves; 91, Francist, also named in the will of his uncle Richard3

Graves,

165 The previous identification ol this
John Graves as the John, born 10 Dec.
1712, died 30 March 1747, who married,
22 Nov. 1732, Susanpa Dicken, born 14

June 1714, was questioned by Charles H,
Hamlin, loc. eit,, who concluded that John
Graves (1712=~1747) was the son of 41.
Johnt Graves and his wife Rebecka.

GRAY!'

*1. THOMAS! GRAY, “an ancient planter at or before the time
of Sir Thomas Dale,"™ 1616, was living at James City, 1623/4,3 and
was listed there in the muster, 1624/3, with his wife Margaret, son
William?, aged 3 years, and daughter Joane, aged 6 years. He
deposed 7 March 1653/4 that he was aged 60 years or thereabouts 4

On 12 Oct. 1626 Thomas! Gray appeared as a witness before the
General Court at Jamestown.® His first patent, 27 Aug. 1635, for
550 acres on the south side of James River, “over against James
Cinty” and on Rolfe’s and Cross creeks, included 100 acres as an
Ancient Planter and 50 acres each for the transportation of his (1)
wife Anis {Annis) Gray, his preseat wile Rebecca Gray and two sons
Willtum?2 and Thomas?. and adjoined a plantation already in his
pussession.® He added 400 acres of Grayes Creek by patent, 20 July
1634,7 and an adjoining 100 acres on 7 june 1642.* Another 400
acres he had patented was lost for failure of planiing and seating
and repatented by Samuel Abbat, 10 April 1644,* but both this
tract, by purchase from Abbott, and his July 1639 patent were
included in a new patent for 800 acres, 14 March 1652/3.10

Thomas! Gray was probably dead before 2 Nov. 1658!! when
Francis? Gray wranslerred a patent to his brother Thomas2. On 11
May 1659 Luke Mizell estified in court that while he was servant to
Tho. Gray, Sr., deceased, he “did often hear sd Gray and his wife
say that [Thomas] Gates had given 50 acres to their son Thomas

and daughter Jane.”12

t Benjanun G, Holuolaw, “Thomas
Gray, Ancient Plantery of Surry County,
Virginia, and Descendams,” Hudurical
Suuthern Famiien, XV11 (Baluswore, 1974),
pp. H1-102; John Bennet Beddie, Virgina
Hutoncal Genealogies (Redwood Ciny, Calif.,
1954), pp. 30913,

2 Patent Bk. 1, p. 283

Y Houen, p. 176.

1 Surry Co. Deeds |, Wills ¢ |, 1652-72,

4l

s MCGE, p. 119,

6 Patent Bk. 1, pp. 283, 631 (repaiem 26
May 165%).

7 hid., p. 669,

¥ id., p. 787.

9 Ibed., p. 950,

W Pateru Bk. 3, p. 158,

1 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c I, 1652-72,
po 121,
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f;m’ﬁfmums or

e *Margaret was listed in the
fied (3), by 11 Sept. 1626, Rebecca —— who
deposed before the General Court that “good wief Wright did tell
her this deponent That by one Token weh this deponent had in her ;
forehed she should burye her Husbande.”'s This prediciion did -
not come true since Thomas! Gray survived Rebecca and, by about
1645, married (4) by whom he had young chiidren, the
orphans mentioned in a controversy about land with John Corker,
26 June 1662.16 .
Issue: (by 1) 2. JONE (Jane)?; 3. William2, born about 1622, --
ied young; (by 3Y4../

in his father’s 1635 patem, apparenuly died young; (by
<72 Thomas2, Jold 100 acres on Gray's Creek called Hollowing Foint to
R and Isabella Case, 3 Nov. 1667,17 and about BO acres on

Gray's Creek and Cross Creek to Thomas and Joane Cruse, 5 Nov. y

1667,'8 both tracis.apparently inherited from his father, and died
before | Jan. 1672(3 when Francis? Gray was appuointed his admin-
istrator;!9 5. REBECCA?; 6. FRANCIS?; {(by 4) 7. W‘ILLIAM‘z; 8.
JOHN?Z; 9. Thomas?, deposed, 2 July 1672, he was near 21 years of ™

brother Francis' three daughters and Francis' wife and leaving his
land to his brothers John and William.

2. JONE2 (Jane) GRAY {Thomas!), born abowm 1618, married
John Hux who gave his age as 40 in a deposition, 7 Nov. 1652, and
as 46 in a deposition, 9 May 1659.2* He married (2) Mary and
died before 4 May 1668 when his widow appointed John Harlow,
whom she subsequently married, as her attorney.*

Issue: [HUX] 10. MARY3; 11, William?, left will, 31 Oct. 1676-1
May 1677, giving his Jand to his nieces Susannah and Mary
Ironmonger.?

5. REBECCAZ2 GRAY (Thomas'), born probably 1628-30, mar-
ried Daniel Hutton. On 7 March 1653/4 Thomas! Gray deposed
that Daniel Hutton left ail bis estate to his wife Rebecca.?® She

1 id., p. 131. i Surry Co. Decds, Wills 8¢ 2, 167 1-84,

13 Register, Si. Peter, Pauls Wharl, Lon- p. 20.
don, MS 5721/1, Guild Hall, Lundon. 20 fhd., p. 113.

W The name Margaret may have been 2 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills 8 1, 1652-72,
an error of the recorder of the muster, pp.- 4, 131,

15 MCGC, p. 141 5 Jond., p. 302

16 Surey Co. Deeds, Wills &c 1, 165272, # Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &¢ 2, 167184,
p. 192 p. 122,

v Iid., p. 291. 25 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &g |, 1652-72,

18 Ibd , p. 292. P4l

19 Surry Co. Order Bk. 1671-91. p. 18.
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apparently died by 20 May 1655 when Arthur Josdan, as guardian
of Elizabeth Huttan, leased 136 acres that had belonged 1o Daniel
Hutton 1o Robert Stanion

Issue: [HUTTON] 12, Elizabeth?, as daughter of Daniel Hutton
recetved patent for 136 acres, 26 May 165427 married Nicholas
Perry and died without issue by 11 March 1671/2 2

6. FRANCIS? GRAY (Thomas!), born about 1630-35, married
Mary who was granted administration on his estate 6 May
1679.% His widow married (2), by 6 July 1679, Owen Myrick.3¢

Issue: 13. Joan®, left a bequest in the will of Thomas Weeks,
1676:31 14. Mary?, on whuse estate Owe yrick was ordered 10
give an accounting, 3 July 1683;% 15, (f\ither)3; 16. WILLIAMS.

7. WILLIAM? GRAY (Thomas!), born probably about 1648-9,
was a justice of Surry County, sherifl 10 April 1700, and served as a
member of the House of Burgesses, 1710=12.% He married Eliza-
beth jarrett, daughter of Richard Jarret.™ He owned 1750 acres
in Surry County, 1704, His will, 3 June 1719-18 Nov. 17193
named his sons William and Gilbery, daughters Mary Gray, Faith
Rutlin and Prisailla Gray, and several grandchildren.

Issue: 17. WILLIAM?; 18, John™, left will, 23 June 1708-9 Nov.
1708, naming his Tather, sister Lydiw and brothers Thomas and
Gitber 190 Thomas™, spparently dicd wianarried before his
father: 200 GILBER'TY, 210 Marvd, 220 FAVTHY, 23, Priscilla®,
marricd Capt. Thomas Hill, on whose estate she returned an
inventory dated 15 Jan. 1736/7;% 24, Lydia®; 25. (DAUGHTER)3;
26. (DAUGHTER)™.

8. JOHN2 GRAY (Thomas!) deposed 2 July 1672 that he was
aged about 21,9 With his brother William? as “joynt heirs of Thos.
Grey there Brother, Lately deceased,” he sold land to Col. Thomas
Swann, 15 Nov. 1677% and, 26 Sept. 1678, they were jointly
granted the 800 acres originally patented by Thomas! Gray.+0 He
married Mary —— who married (2), by 3 March 1684/5, Robert

® thed., p. 77

27 Parent Bk, 5, p. 26. This land fell o
15, William® Gray as “next cousin and heir
ol the siud Fliza Hutton™ (Suery Con Deeds,
Wills & 3, 168447, p. 3).

W Surry Co. Decds, Wills 8¢ 2, 167 -8,
p. 4.

2 Surey Co. Order Bk, 187591, p. 248,

M b, o 288, Order BK 16911713, p.
28 :

3 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 2, 167 1-H4,
p. 113,

%2 Surry Co. Order Bk, [67]-91, p. 406

33 Surry Co. Order Bk, [6Y1-1713, p.

204 Leonard, p. 56,

14 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills §c 2, 1671-84,
P 3% Holudaw, op. ok, p. 95,

1 Surey Co. Deeds, Wills & 7, 1715=30,
p. 226,

W Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 5, 1694-
1704 p. 403,

37 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c B, [730-34,
p. 703,

M Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 2, 167184,
P 20,

4 fbuel., p. 145,

1 Parent Bk, 6, p. 653.
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Nicholson.# His will, 16 May 1683—3 July 1683,12 mentioned his
wife and daughter and lefi his Jand, if his daughter died, to “my
Cozen John Gray, Will Gray's son.”

Issue: 27. (Daughter)?, probably married William Dennis of
North Carolina who, 19 Nov. 1725, deeded the 800 acres patented
by Thomas! Gray to 17. William? Gray.*®

10. MARY3 HUX (Mary2 Gray, Thomas!) died by 2 May 1693
when administration on her estate was granted to Samuel Aiso-
brook and Mary his wife. She married Thomas Ironmonger who
deposed, 3 March 1684/5, he was aged 49, but stated 7 Nov. 1690
he was aged 60.45 Mary? as administratrix returned an inventory of
the estate of Thomas Ironmonger, 7 July 169146

Issue; [IRONMONGER] 28. Susannah?, named in the will of her
uncle William3 Hux, 1676; 29. Mary#, also named in William Hux's
will, married Samuel Alsobrook, on whose estate administration
was granted to John Thompson, 5 Nov. 1696:17 30. Ann4, men-
tioned as orphan of Thomas, 3 Nov. 1696;4% 31, Thomasd, died
intestate 1711].49

16. WILLIAM?3 GRAY (Francis?, Thomas!) deposed 7 Nov. 1690
he was aged 28 or thereabouts.® He owned 100 acres in Surry
County, 1704, He married Mary and left will, 10 Feb. 1710/1-
20 Oct. 1714, naming his wife and son.

Issue: 32. Thomas?, possibly physically disabled,’? chose William
Foster as his guardian, 21 Aug. 1717 5

17. WILLIAM3 GRAY (William?, Thomas!), born about 1676-
77, owned 1050 acres in Surry County, 1704. He was a member of
the House of Burgesses 171314, 1723-26, 1730-34.% and sherift
of Surry County, 18 June 1718. He miarried, by 3 March 1701/2,5
8. Mary3 Holt (see HOLT), daughter of Randali? Holt and widow of

41 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &¢ 3, 1684587,
no pagination, She signed the inventury as
Mary Nicholson; Robert Nicholson swore
o an accounting, 5 May 1685,

42 Burry Cu. Deeds, Wills &c 2. 167 1-84,

p. 3350,

43 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &¢ 7, 171530,
p. 621.

A4 Surry Co. Order Bk. [6Y1-1713,
p-71.

45 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &«c 3, 168487,
w0 pagination; Deeds, Wills & 4. 1647-94,
p. 183,

46 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 4, 1687-94,
po. 212-13,

17 Surry Co. Order Bk, 1641-17134, p.

173,

aw hid., p. 170.

1 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &t 6, 170915,
p. 53.

3 Surry Co. Decds, Wills &c 4, 1687-4U4,
p. 183a

51 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &« 5, 1644-
17049, p, 212,

32 Surry Co, Order Bk. 1713-18, p. 5.
His lather petitioned 20 May 1713 that
Thamas be exempied from levies,

W thid,, p. 121,

™ Leonard, pp. 67, 74, 74, 77,

55 Surry Co. Ordec BL, (69{-1713,
p. 222,
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John Seward. His will, 10 March 1731/2-16 June 1736,5% and her
will, 31 March 1766-20 Dec. 1757,57 named their children.

Issue: 33, William?, boyn 1703, patented 5000 acres in New Kent
County, 29 June 1739,% as resident of New Kent County sold land
he had inhertied from his father, 4 Dec. 1744,59 was justice of New
Kent, 1742, Burgess, 1742-47.61 and vestryman of St. Peter's
Parish, 1745~48, 1751-54, when Ma). William Gray was recorded
as “"Remov'd out of this Colony,™ married Elizabeth (Litwlepage)
Chamberlayne, daughter of Richard Litdepage and widow of
William Chamberlayne of New Kent;8 34, Robertd, born 1704,
died 1777, qualified as sheriff of Surry County, 17495 moved to
Edgecombe Co., N.C,, left will 18 Feb. 178]1-Aug. 1781,55 married
Mary : 35, Josepht, born 1707, colonel of militia, justice, 1749,
sherift, 1751, and Burgess from Isle of Wight County, 1742-49,
and Southampton County, 1755-69,# left will 30 Aug. 1769-13
June 1771.67 married (1), 14 Dec. 1729,5 Sarah Simmons, daugh-
ter of Col. John Simmons, and (2}, about 17488 Sarah —,
named in his will; 36. Thomas*, admitted to practice as an attorney
in Surry County, 19 Sept. 1745;70 37. Lucy4, born 1711, left will 25
June 1778-18 Feb. 17797 married Howell Briggs, of “Wales,”
Dinwiddie County, justice and captain of militia, who died 21 April
1775 in his 66th year,7? leaving will 16 Dec. 1772-2] Sept. 17757
38. Edmundi, under 21 in 1731, given land in Isle of Wight
County by hus father which, as a resident of Goochland County, he
sold to his brother Joseph, 26 Sept. 1745;™ 39, James?, under 21 in
1731, left will © Feb. 1788-25 June 1788,75 married Sarah .

20. GILBERT3 GRAY (WilliamZ, Thomas!) married (1) —— and
(2) Margaret Taylor, daughter of John Taylor and his wife Ann
who married (2) Nicholas Magit.? Gilbert? Gray left a will, 8 April

36 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c B, 173038, .

p. 604,

57 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 10, 1754
68, p. 113; Order Bk. 1757-63, p. 43.

5 Paremt Bk. 18, pp. 291-92.

3 Surry Co. Deed Bk. 4, L741-46. pp.
277-81.

8t Leonard, p. 79,

82 (.. G. Chamberlayne, ed., The Veury
Hook and Register of $t. Peter's Parish (Rich-
mond, 1937y, pp. IR7, 293, 306, 3109, 316.

&% Malcolm H. Harris, (id New Kent
County (West Poimt, Va, 1977}, 1. p. 127.

6 Surry Co. Ocder Bk, 174951, p. 4.

63 Edgecombe Co., N.C., Will Bk B, pp.

64-67.

56 Leonard, pp. 79, 81, 85, 87, 93, 96.

5 Southampton Co. Will Bk. 2, p. 411.

64 Family Bible, in ¥V XXX, p. 64.

64 Thid.

W Surry Co. Order Bk. 1744-49, p. 85.

71 Sussex Co. Will Bk, C, p. 323,

72 Albemarle Parish Regisier; V XLIV,
P 232

73 Sussex Co. Will Bk. C, pp. 190-92.

M Isle of Wight Co. Deed Bk. 7, p. 365.

73 Burry Co. Will Bk. 2, p. 129,

" Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 7, p. 366;
Decds, Wills &c 9, p. 503; Deeds, Wills &c
0. p. 8.
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1758-18 Dec. 1764,77 and Margaret Gray left a nuncupative will,
27 June 1767-17 Nov. 1767.78

Issue: (by 1) 40. Joseph?, married ; 42. Elizabeth?, married
Mathias Marriott who left will 13 July 1774-22 Nov. 1774;™ 43,
Saraht, married Thomas Washington, Jr.; (by 2) 44. William4,
named in the will of his maternal grandmother, Ann Magit, 5 Sept.
1752, but not in that of his father, 1758; 45. John?, resided in
Edgecombe Co., N.C., 21 Dec. 1777, when he sold land his father
had purchased from William Gray of New Kent County in 1741,80
married Mary ; 46. Mary4, married —— Clinch; 47. Lucy?, left
will 31 Dec. 1772-28 Sept. 1778;8! 48. James?, under 21 in 1772.

22, FAITH3 GRAY (William2, Thomas!), born about 1688, died
about 1720, married William Ruffin who setded in the part of
Bertie Co., N.C., which in 1741 became Northampton County. He
married (2) Sarah (Crafford) Newsum and died before 10 Feb.
1738/9 when the inventary of his estate was made.8

Issue [RUFFIN] 49. William#4, born about 1708, of Northampton
Co., N.C,, left will 1 March 1779-Nov. 1781, Bertie Co., N.C.,8
married ——; 50. Ethelred4, born about 1710, left will 30 March
1777-June 1777,84 of Northampton Co., N.C., married
Martha ——; 5i. Rabert?, born about 1712, left will 28 March
1767-Aug. 17678 married, 1733, Anne Benneu, daughier of
Capt. William and Grace Bennett;% 52, Samuel4, born about 1716,
died before 23 Feb. 1779 when his sons Ethelred and Gray Ruffin
were granted administration on his estate,$? justice and sheriff,
1778, of Edgecombe Cao., N.C., member of North Carolina Assem-
bly, 1762, married Sarah McWilliams.%?

25. (DAUGHTER)? GRAY (William?2, Thomas!) married
Andrews,

Issue [ANDREWS] 53. William1, named in his grandfather’s will,
1719,

17 Surry Co, Deeds, Wills &c 10, p. 376.

M [d., p. 489.

79 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills Ev 10A,
p. 389

80 Surry Co. Deed Bk. 10, p. 262,

8 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills, &c 10A,
p. 317.

81 Bertie Co., N.C., Original Estates Pa-
pers, Nerth Carolina Archives file
C.R0Q10.504.1, Box 88,

83 Bertie Co., N.C., Will Bk. C, pp. 28-
30; John Benneu Boddie, Histurical Soush-

ren Families, 1X (Honolulu, 1965}, p. 227.

# Northampion Co., N.C.,, WL Bk, 1,
pp. 13=-16.

5 find., pp. 153-55.

86 fhid., pp. 113-15, will of William Ben-
neuw, 7 July 1758-Feb. 1765,

4 Edgecombe Co., N.C., Minutes 1772~
84, no pagination.

88 Narth Carofing Government, 158§9-1979
(Raleigh, 1981}, p. 49.

89 Northampion Co., N.C., Deed Bk, |,
p 7.
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26. (DAUGHTER)® GRAY (William?2, Thomas!) married —
Edwards.

Issue: (EDWARDS) 54, Elizabeth?, named in her grandfacher's
will, 1719,

GRENDON

*1. EDWARD! GRENDON was in Virginia by 1616, He was
called “an auncient Planter” when he received a patent for 150
acres of land, 5 Dec. 1620.t This Jand, called the Old Fort and
Grendon’s Hill, was in what is now Surry County, opposite James
City, and becarme part of the Treasurer’s (George Sandys’) Planta-
tion.? He also owned land on James Island.* He represented the
Plantations over the Water in the General Assembly of 1624 and
Shirley in that of 1628.1 Although he was in the List of the Living,
16 Feb. 1623/4, alone,® Mistress Grendon is mentioned 7 Feb.
1627/8.¢ On 4 July 1627 Mr. Grindon was named second in
comand to Capt. West to go against the Tappahannaes:? His will,
now lost, was proved 9 Dec. 1628.% He left 650 acres of land to
Thomas Grendon, “his heir in England,” which Thomas sold 1o
Capt. George Evelyn, 3 Aug. 16409

Issue: 2. THOMAS®. ,

9. THOMAS? CRENDON (FEdward!), a mature man when his
father died, seems to have divided his time between Virginia and
London. He was a member of the General Assembly of 1633 for
Smith’s Mount, the other side of the water and Hogg Island,!1? but
was 2 merchant of London 12 April 1638.'t As Thomas Grendon
of Dukes Place, citizen and draper of London, he left a will, 15 Dec.
1678-29 Oct. 1680, which referred 1o lands in Fultherley in
Shenston, Staffordshire.1? His wife Elizabeth —— survived him but
he survived his only son.

Issue: 3. THOMASY; 4. Hannah3,
3. THOMAS3 GRENDON (Thomas?, Edward!) died before
Dec. 1678, the date of his father's will. He married Elizabeth ~—,

I Patent Bk. 4. p. 316; R, Va. Ce. 11, p.
a45; IV, p. 555. The name also appears as
GRINDALL and GRINDON,

¢ Patent Bk, 1, p. 775,

1ibd., p. 630.

i Leonard, pp. 5, 7.

3 Houten, p. 180.

& MCGCT, p. 163

7 tbid,, p. 151,

Wibd., p. 179.

4 Patent Bk, 4, p. 316.

19 Leonard, p. 12.

W Patent Bk. |, p. 630.

PG 128 Bath, in V X1V, pp. 207~
OB, ’
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